

SYSTEM/360 COBOL COBOL Program Fundamentals Reference Handbook

\*

**Programmed Instruction Course** 

# IBM

SYSTEM/360 COBOL COBOL Program Fundamentals Reference Handbook

**Programmed Instruction Course** 

Minor Revision (July 1967)

This publication, R29-0206-1, is a reprint of Form R29-0206-0 incorporating minor editorial changes made on pages dated (7/67). The original publication is not obsoleted.

Copies of this publication can be obtained through IBM Branch Offices. Address comments concerning the contents of this publication to: IBM DPD Education Development, Education Center, Endicott, New York

©International Business Machines Corporation 1966

#### PREFACE

This reference handbook provides useful information for people who want to be able to read COBOL programs with a high degree of comprehension. It is designed to be studied in conjunction with the <u>COBOL Program Fundamentals programmed</u> instruction textbook (Form R29-0205).

The reader of these publications is expected to have prior experience in data processing and computer programming, as well as knowledge of System/360 features, but no prior knowledge of COBOL.

This publication is not intended to provide all of the information a student needs in order to compose original COBOL programs. Additional information for that purpose is given in the next course of this series, Writing Programs in COBOL. The publications that make up that course are a programmed instruction text (Form R29-0210) and a reference handbook (Form R29-0211).

Complete specifications for System/360 COBOL may be found in the reference manual, IBM Operating System/360 COBOL Language (Form C28-6516), or the reference manual IBM System/360 Disk and Tape Operating Systems COBOL Language Specifications (Form C24-3433). The appropriate manual should be selected based on the operative system that you plan to use.

i

The following information is reprinted from COBOL Edition 1965, published by the Conference on Data Systems Languages (CODASYL), and printed by the U. S. Government Printing Office.

"Any organization interested in reproducing the COBOL report and specifications in whole or in part, using ideas taken from this report as the basis for an instruction manual or for any other purpose is free to do so. However, all such organizations are requested to reproduce this section as part of the introduction to the document. Those using a short passage, as in a book review, are requested to mention "COBOL" in acknowledgement of the source, but need not quote this entire section.

"COBOL is an industry language and is not the property of any company or group of companies, or of any organization or group of organizations.

"No warranty, expressed or implied, is made by any contributor or by the COBOL Committee as to the accuracy and functioning of the programming system and language. Moreover, no responsibility is assumed by any contributor, or by the committee, in connection therewith.

"Procedures have been established for the maintenance of COBOL. Inquiries concerning the procedures for proposing changes should be directed to the Executive Committee of the Conference on Data Systems Languages.

"The authors and copyright holders of the copyrighted material used herein

FLOW-MATIC (Trademark of Sperry Rand Corporation), Programming for the Univac (R) I and II, Data Automation Systems copyrighted 1958, 1959, by Sperry Rand Corporation; IBM Commercial Translator Form No. F28-8013, copyrighted 1959 by IBM; FACT, DSI 27A5260-2760, copyrighted 1960 by Minneapolis-Honeywell

have specifically authorized the use of this material in whole or in part, in the COBOL specifications. Such authorization extends to the reproduction and use of COBOL specifications in programming manuals of similar publications".

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

### Introduction

```
Introduction to COBOL . . . 3
COBOL programming system
terms . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
```

## Language Elements

Language	e	le	me	nt	S	•	•	•	•	•	. 7	
Reserved	W	or	ds	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	8-9	
Programm	er	-s	up	p1	ie	d	na	me	25	•	.10	
Symbols	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	.11	

Literals	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	.12
Level numbers	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	.13
Pictures	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	.14

## **Program Structure and Contents**

## **Identification Division**

## Environment Division

Environment division entries . . . . . . . . . 25-26

## Data Division

Data division entries . . 28-30 System/360 COBOL terms for units of data . . . . 31 

## **Procedure Division**

## **Case Study**

Case study. . . . . . . . 61-67

## Introduction

#### INTRODUCTION TO COBOL

<u>Origins</u>. COBOL (COmmon Business Oriented Language) is the result of an effort to establish a standard language for programming computers to do business data processing. The original specifications for COBOL were drawn up in 1959 by representatives of several computer manufacturers and users. The specifications have been revised and improved several times since 1959.

Aims. COBOL is designed for producing source programs that are

- <u>standardized</u>, using standard language elements in standard entry formats within a standard program structure. COBOL endeavors to provide one common language for all computers, regardless of make or model.
- <u>easy to understand</u>, because they are written in English.
   The bulk of every COBOL program is made up of English words in entries that resemble English sentences. Good COBOL programs are easy to read and comprehend, for non-programmers as well as for programmers.
- <u>oriented to business procedures</u>, not to the technology of computing machinery. This makes it possible for business people who are not computer experts to use COBOL.

<u>Differences</u>. In order to adjust to major differences in computers, certain language differences are allowed in COBOL for individual computer systems, within the framework of one common language. System/360 COBOL is different in some ways from COBOL for other computers. (This handbook is concerned only with System/360 COBOL.)

#### COBOL PROGRAMMING SYSTEM TERMS

COBOL program: a source program written in COBOL, from which an object program is compiled.

Object program: the machine language program compiled from a COBOL program.

<u>Compile:</u> to use a computer to produce an object program from a COBOL program. During compilation, listings of the source and object programs are printed, as well as diagnostic messages that pinpoint errors the compiler has discovered in the COBOL program.

<u>COBOL compiler</u>: a program supplied by IBM that directs the computer during compilation.

Source computer: the computer used to compile the object program.

Object computer: the computer used to execute the object program.

## Language Elements

#### LANGUAGE ELEMENTS

The COBOL language is made up of these elements:

- Reserved words
- Programmer-supplied names
- Symbols
- Literals
- Level numbers
- Pictures

Programmers <u>compose</u> programmer-supplied names, literals, and pictures. Of course, there are rules that govern the choice and arrangement of characters. Within the latitude permitted by the rules, however, programmers are free to compose an almost infinite number of names, literals, and pictures to suit particular needs in programs.

By contrast, the reserved words, symbols, and level numbers are provided in fixed sets, from which programmers <u>select</u> the ones they need. Programmers are not allowed to invent new reserved words, symbols, or level numbers. Even so, there are rules to follow -for example, in determining which reserved word to use for a particular entry.

Examples of elements. The sample COBOL program entry below contains all six elements.



#### RESERVED WORDS

Approximately 250 English words and abbreviations have been set aside to be used only for certain purposes. Special meanings have been preassigned to the reserved words; therefore, the programmer

- does not define reserved words.
- has no way of changing the meanings of reserved words.
- cannot add words of his own to the reserved word list.
- cannot substitute other words for those on the list.
- must not alter or misspell reserved words.
- may use reserved words only for specified purposes.

Types of reserved words. Some of the main types of reserved words are:

- words that identify program units; for instance, SECTION, ENVIRONMENT, and WORKING-STORAGE.
- words that identify or explain parts of entries; for instance, BLOCK, PICTURE, and VALUE.
- words that specify actions to be taken, like READ, MOVE, and ADD.
- words with specific functional meanings, such as NEGATIVE, COMPUTATIONAL, and EQUAL.
- words that represent certain data values; for instance,
   ZERO, SPACES, and HIGH-VALUE. (See "Figurative constants" below.)

Figurative constants. As a rule, it is up to the programmer to define data items and to supply names for them. However, a few data items with predefined values have been built right into the COBOL language. The names of these built-in data items are reserved words which are called "figurative constants".

The most frequently used figurative constants are ZERO and SPACE. These reserved words (and their plural forms, ZEROS or ZEROES, and SPACES) represent the data characters zero and blank, respectively. The programmer may use these words whenever zero or blank values are required in a program; for instance, he might write MOVE ZEROS TO TOTAL-WAGES in order to put all-zeros into a data item. Similarly, he might write MOVE SPACE TO CONTROL-CODE in order to blank-out a data item.

(Continued on next page)

#### RESERVED WORDS (continued)

### Complete list of reserved words for System/360 COBOL.

ACCEPT ACCESS ACTUAL ADD ADVANCING AFTER ALL ALPHABETIC ALTER ALTERNATE AND APPLY ARE AREA AREAS ASCENDING ASSIGN AT AUTHOR BEFORE BEGINNING BLANK BLOCK BY CALL CF CH CHANGED CHARACTERS CHECKING CLOCK-UNITS CLOSE COBOL CODE COLUMN COMMA COMPUTATIONAL COMPUTATIONAL-1 COMPUTATIONAL-2 COMPUTATIONAL-3 COMPUTE CONFIGURATION CONSOLE CONTAINS CONTROL CONTROLS COPY CORRESPONDING CREATING CYCLES DATA DATE-COMPILED DATE-WRITTEN

DE DECIMAL-POINT DECLARATIVES DEPENDING DESCENDING DETAIL DIRECT DIRECT-ACCESS DISPLAY DISPLAY-ST DIVIDE DIVISION ELSE END ENDING ENTER ENTRY ENVIRONMENT EOUAL. ERROR EVERY EXAMINE EXHIBIT EXIT FD FILE FILES FILE-CONTROL FILE-LIMIT FTLLER FINAL FIRST FOOTING FOR FORM-OVERFLOW FROM GENERATE GIVING GO GREATER GROUP HEADING HIGH-VALUE HIGH-VALUES HOLD IBM-360 IDENTIFICATION IF IN INCLUDE

INDEXED INDICATE INITIATE INPUT INPUT-OUTPUT INSTALLATION TNTO INVALID I-0 I-O-CONTROL TS JUSTIFIED KEY LABEL LABELS LAST LEADING LESS LINE LINE-COUNTER LINES LINKAGE LOCK LOW-VALUE LOW-VALUES MODE MORE-LABELS MOVE MULTIPLY NAMED NEGATIVE NEXT NO NOT NOTE NUMERIC OBJECT-COMPUTER OCCURS OF OH OMITTED ON OPEN OR ORGANIZATION OTHERWISE OUTPUT ov OVERFLOW

PAGE PAGE-COUNTER PERFORM PF PH PICTURE PLUS POSITIVE PRINT-SWITCH PROCEDURE PROCEED PROCESS PROCESSING PROGRAM-ID PROTECTION OUOTE QUOTES RANDOM RD READ READY RECORD RECORDING RECORDS REDEFINES REEL RELATIVE RELEASE REMARKS REPLACING REPORT REPORTING REPORTS RERUN RESERVE RESET RESTRICTED RETURN REVERSED REWIND REWRITE RF RH RIGHT ROUNDED

RUN

SA

SD

SAME

SEARCH

SECTION

SECURITY

SENTENCE SEQUENTIAL SIZE SORT SOURCE SOURCE-COMPUTER SPACE SPACES SPECIAL-NAMES STANDARD STOP SUBTRACT SUM SYMBOLIC SYSIN SYSOUT SYSPUNCH TALLY TALLYING TERMINATE THAN THEN THRU TIMES то TRACE TRACK-AREA TRACKS TRANSFORM TRY TYPE UNIT UNIT-RECORD UNITS UNTTL UPON USAGE USE USING UTILITY VALUE VARYING WHEN WITH

SELECT

WORKING-STORAGE WRITE WRITE-ONLY

ZERO ZEROES ZEROS

#### PROGRAMMER-SUPPLIED NAMES

Names for data items, data conditions, and procedures are supplied by programmers. These names must be defined within the program in which they are used, since, unlike reserved words, they do not have preassigned meanings.

Rules governing programmer-supplied names.

- A name may be as many as 30 characters long.
- It may contain letters, digits, and hyphens.
- Names of procedures may be composed entirely of digits, but names of data items and data conditions must contain at least one letter.
- A name must not begin or end with a hyphen, although there may be hyphens anywhere else in the name.
- Spaces (blanks) must not appear within a name.
- No name may be spelled exactly the same as a reserved word.

Examples of programmer-supplied names in an entry.

OVERTIME GIVING GROSS-EARNINGS REGULAR-WAGES, ADD programmer-supplied names

#### SYMBOLS

Symbols are special characters which, individually, have particular meanings for the compiler.

Punctuation symbols -- used to punctuate program entries.

•	period	used to terminate entries
,	comma	used to separate operands or clauses in a series
;	semicolon	used to separate clauses in a series
t	quotation mark	used to enclose non-numeric literals
()	parentheses	used to enclose subscripts

Arithmetic symbols -- found in arithmetic formulas.

+	plus	addition; "plus"
-	minus	subtraction; "minus"
*	asterisk	multiplication; "times"
/	slash	division; "divided by"
**	two asterisks	exponentiation; "raised to the power of"
=	equal	"make equal to"
0	parentheses	used to enclose quantities, to control the sequence in which

<u>Condition symbols</u> -- found in expressions which involve tests of data conditions.

=	equal	"is equal to"
>	greater than	"is greater than"

less than "is less than" <

()	parentheses	used to enclose expressions,
		to control the sequence in which
		conditions are evaluated

operations are performed

#### LITERALS

A literal is an actual value used in a program. Literals are supplied by programmers; but unlike a programmer-supplied name, a literal describes itself and needs no separate definition in the program. The two main types of literals are "numeric" and "non-numeric" literals.

#### Rules governing numeric literals.

- A numeric literal may be made up of digits, a plus sign or a minus sign, and a decimal point.
- It may contain as many as 18 digits.
- If there is a sign, it must be the leftmost character of the literal.
- If there is no sign, the number is assumed to be positive.
- A decimal point may appear anywhere in the number, except as the rightmost character. Whole numbers are written without decimal points.

An example of a numeric literal in an entry.



Rules governing non-numeric literals.

- A non-numeric literal is always enclosed by quotation marks.
   The quotation marks are not part of the literal.
- It may be as many as 120 characters long.
- It may contain any character except a quotation mark. So, digits, letters, spaces, and all special characters except one, may be found in non-numeric literals.

An example of a non-numeric literal in an entry.



#### LEVEL NUMBERS

Level numbers are found in entries that assign names to data items and data values. The major purpose of level numbers is to designate the levels of data items, in relation to each other. The numbers that may be used are 01 through 49; 77; and 88.

Level numbers 01 through 49 are used to designate the levels of data items that form records. Level number 01 is always assigned to the record as a whole, while 02 through 49 are assigned to items that are parts of records.

Level number 77 is used in entries that describe independent data items, that is, items that are not records or parts of records.

Level number 88 is used in entries that assign names to specific values that data items may assume.

When an entry contains a level number, the level number is always the first element of the entry. The level number is followed either by a programmer-supplied name or the reserved word FILLER.

Examples of level numbers in entries.



TRANSACTION-RECORD. 01 RECORD-IDENTIFICATION. 02 RECORD-CODE. PICTURE 03 Χ. INCOMING VALUE Δ' 88 'B' 88 OUTGOING VALUE ACCOUNT-NUMBER, PICTURE 999 03 02 CUSTOMER-IDENTIFICATION.

#### PICTURES

Pictures describe certain characteristics of data items, such as

- how many characters an item contains.
- whether the characters are numeric, alphabetic, or alphanumeric.
- whether the item has a sign.
- where an assumed decimal point is located.
- what editing (deletion, replacement, or insertion of characters) is to be done to form the item.

Each picture is a string of characters, and may be from 1 to 30 characters long. Pictures are composed of one or more of the characters listed below. (Each character or pair of characters has a symbolic meaning; the meanings of some of these characters are explained later in this book.)

A B CR DB E K P S V X Z 0 9 + - , . \$ \* ()

Pictures may also contain numeric literals (unsigned whole numbers only) enclosed in parentheses. The literals provide an abbreviated way of repeating a picture character; for instance, X(20) means the same as 20 Xs in a row.

In an entry, a picture is always preceded by the word PICTURE or by the words PICTURE IS.

Examples of pictures in entries.

																								P	-	 <b>66</b> 4		0															
	ī	,								_				_				_						¥	/		١									_							
Ī			6	2	1	=	1	L	L	E	R			Ρ	1	С	Т	U	R	E		x	(	8	)				4					Ī		Γ			T	Τ		T	•
I			0	2	ļ	S	Т	0	С	ĸ	-	V	A	L	υ	E			Ρ	1	С	Т	U	R	E	\$	\$	,	\$	\$	\$	9	9										
-	 _	_			_	_				_							-	_	-					· · ·			_			_			-		-		_	 _	_		_		2

nd advinaa

## Program Structure and Contents

#### PROGRAM STRUCTURE

COBOL programs are composed of entries arranged in divisions, sections, and paragraphs. In general, a division is made up of sections, and a section is made up of paragraphs.

Divisions. All COBOL programs are divided into four separate divisions. The divisions have fixed names -- IDENTIFICATION, ENVIRONMENT, DATA, and PROCEDURE; and always appear in that order in a program.

The beginning of each division is marked by a division header entry, which consists of the name of the division followed by the word DIVISION and a period. A division header always appears on a line by itself.

Sections. Sections are not found in the Identification division. The Environment and Data divisions always contain sections, and the sections in those divisions have fixed names. In the Procedure division, sections are optional; there programmers may, if they wish, create sections and supply names for them.

Each section is identified by a header entry which consists of the section name followed by the word SECTION and a period. A section header usually appears on a line by itself.

Paragraphs. All of the divisions except the Data division contain paragraphs. In the Identification and Environment divisions, the names of all paragraphs are fixed. In the Procedure division, paragraph names are supplied by programmers.

Paragraphs are identified by header entries which consist of a name followed by a period. Paragraph headers do not contain the word PARAGRAPH. Also, a paragraph header does not have to appear on a line by itself; it must be the first entry on a line, but it may be followed on the same line by other entries of that paragraph.

Entries. An entry can be defined as a series of two or more language elements, the last of which is a period. (However, the programmer cannot arbitrarily string together a bunch of elements, and call them an entry. The sequence of elements in each entry is dictated by precise format rules.)

A paragraph header is probably the simplest entry, since it consists of a reserved word or a programmer-supplied name, and a period. Likewise, division and section headers are relatively simple entries. Most entries, though, are longer and more complex.

(Continued on next page)

## PROGRAM STRUCTURE (continued)

### Sample division with structural units identified.

division		er	ntries	
800	etione	3	$\leq$	ENVIRONMENT DIVISION.
		paragraphs	$\leq$	CONFIGURATION SECTION.
			$\leq$	SOURCE-COMPUTER
			$\geq$	1BM-360 E30.
[			<	INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION.
			$\leq$	FILE-CONTROL.
				SELECT OLD-MASTER-FILE
,				UTILITY 2400 UNITS.
				ASSIGN TO 'SYSOO2'
				UTILITY 2400 UNITS.

#### PROGRAM CONTENTS

<u>Identification division.</u> The Identification division contains information that identifies the program. It is intended, for the most part, to inform people who read the program.

At the very least, the division states the name of the program. Usually it contains further information about the program, such as when the program was written and who the programmers were. There may also be remarks that explain the data processing job for which the program was written.

Environment division. The Environment division contains information about the equipment that will be used when the object program is compiled and executed. Most importantly, it ties together the devices of the computer system and the data files that will be processed.

The model numbers of the System/360s on which the program will be compiled and run may be given. Each data file, by name, is assigned to an input-output device. Sometimes, special input-output techniques are specified.

<u>Data division</u>. The Data division describes the data to be processed by the object program. It describes the data items that make up each of the files named in the Environment division, and in addition, describes the data items that make up working-storage -- such as constants and work areas.

Entries in this division show how the data items are grouped and organized into records and files. Data names, pictures, and other information about the data items are given.

<u>Procedure division</u>. The Procedure division specifies the actions that are required to process the data. Also, it indicates the order in which the actions are to be carried out, and provides for alternate paths of action under given conditions.

The main types of actions that may be specified are input-output, arithmetic, data movement, and sequence control.

Identification Division

#### IDENTIFICATION DIVISION ENTRIES

Unquestionably the simplest division, the Identification division is only required to have the following three entries:

- Division header
- **PROGRAM-ID** paragraph header
- Program name, enclosed in quotation marks

The division may also contain up to six additional paragraphs. Fixed names are provided for these paragraphs(AUTHOR, INSTALLATION, DATE-WRITTEN, DATE-COMPILED, SECURITY, and REMARKS), but the programmer is free to write any number of entries in each paragraph, and to give any desired information in the entries. The entries may contain any characters and words, including reserved words.

#### Sample Identification division.

Ī	I D	E	N	T	1	F	1	c	A	Т	1	0	N	נ	打	1	V	1 5	Ţ	1	21	N								]							Ţ				Ţ			1
ļ											_				$\downarrow$		-	-	╞		-	_				-			+++	4							╀				1		+ +	
F	<mark>R د</mark>	0	G	R		M	_	1	D	•	_				$\downarrow$	Î.	-	1	1				$\downarrow$			1	Ĺ			$\downarrow$		and address					$\downarrow$	_			$\downarrow$	_		$\square$
L	_				P	U	R	<u>C</u>	H	<u>A</u>	S	E	1	•		;		2		1		1		-	;		L	1		$\square$	1						$\bot$	_						
l		Constraints of the	ALC: THE AREA											1			1			-	1.					-		and the second second	1			A manual	a in annual second			- A vice Pales		A COMPANY AND	nan manakar m	- and the second second		17 A 1 4 4 4 4 4 4		
	AU	Т	H	0	R							,										2				A. 1.1.					an a sura							And the second second	100 PRO 100	and the second second		1 - 1 - 1		
Ι				P	A	υ	L		M	E	L	1	C	H		R	•		T									and the second																
Ι													e takin – trakin					1. 1.5 March	Τ				Ι				Γ					and the second					Τ	1			Τ			
T	IN	S	T	A	L	L	A	Т	1	0	N	•			Τ			A. Constanting	Τ				Τ	and the second		1 miles	Γ					-				and a second second	Τ		the last of the s	and the second	Τ	- Indonesia		
T				<b>'</b> P	U	R	c	H	A	S	1	N	G	F	R	E	С	) DF	sli	D	S	uni de la come	D	EI	P/	۱R	Т	N	IE	N	т					a sea deserva	Τ	11 - 1 - MAIL - 11	and the second second		Τ			Π
T		Γ	T	١.											T		ļ		T	ł							Γ			٦				Γ		-	T				T		and a second sec	
Ī	DA	T	E		W	R	1	Т	Т	Ε	N				T			Î	T	1.1.1				W.1.1. 1		1	T	A second second						Γ			T	1.100			T	and the second second		Π
Ť		Ī	Ī	0	R	i	G	1	N	A	L		Ρ	R	o	G	R		1		N	R	1	т.	TE	EN		J	U		Y		19	6	2		T	an April 100			T			Π
t	T	t	Γ	T	Н	i	s	İ	1	S		R	E	V	ī	S	1		J		4		İ	Ŵ	R	I T	T	Ē	N	-	s	E	ΡT	E	M	B	E	2		1 9	<b>)</b>	65	5.	Π
t							-		-	-				Ť	1		į	Ť	1		-	-					t				-	-		F			Ť	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	1		T			Π
ţ	RE	N		¦R	ĸ	s					Π			1	1		-		t	-							t							F			T				t		Π	Π
f	i	1	-	0	U	T	P	U	т		0	F	ŀ	TI	H	1	S	F	치	R	0	G	R	A	M	1	s		Δ		R	E	PO	R	Т	(		F			t	1	Π	H
t		÷		<u>ام!</u>	<u> </u>	i	Ì	P		R	C	Н	Δ	S	F	Ś		FC		R		Ť	н	F	F			•	<u>,</u>	0	11	<u> </u>	M	0	Ņ	TI		-			T			Π
t		-		<u>'</u> T	H	F		R	F	P	0	R	T			S		RF		0		1	R	F		R	V		T	Ч	F	ž	5T	H	14			• Y			$\dagger$		$\mathbf{T}$	Н
t		Ť	3	!0	F	-	F	Δ	<u>-</u>	н	Ĕ	M	0	N.	֠	н		1		N	n			S	- 1	<u>, i</u>	G	т ;	R		R	11		h	-	T	1	•	-	+	$\dagger$	1	$\square$	Н
t	-	Ì		1		1				P	2		<u> </u>	с С	;	N	1 C					D	÷	<u> </u>		<u>, 1</u>	t,	Т	- 1		F	с с	<u> </u>	1.	N		1	T	1		$^{\dagger}$		-	Η
t	;	-		<u>14</u>		L		<b>-</b>		n				3	<u> </u>				+					3			<u>f</u>		1	×		3	•	+	14	-	4		_		+	-		Η
ł		1			S	-	Ţ	H	E	1	P	U	R		H	A	S			G		R	E	C		<u> </u>	15	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	C T	A	R	D	F	H.		E	1	-		-	+	-		_
t			-	S	0	R	Г	E	D	Ì	B	ΙY		2	Ч	R	C	H/	1	S	E		D	A	ſ	-	M		T	Н		N	_ <u>C</u>	0	M	M		ט	1	<u>[]</u>	1	•	1	

e e

**Environment Division** 

#### ENVIRONMENT DIVISION ENTRIES

The Environment division may have two sections, the Configuration section and the Input-Output section. The Configuration section identifies the source and object computers. The Input-Output section (required in all programs that process input or output files) assigns files to input-output devices and may specify special input-output techniques.

#### Sample Environment division.

+					1	-		i	<u> </u>	÷	+	÷	<del>(</del>	1		<u></u>	-	-		-		+			-		<del>,</del>		1	÷		+						ŧ	+-+	<del></del>	+	+
E	N	V	1	RC	) N	M	E	N	T		D	1	۷	1	S	I	0	N	•				and a second second	a de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición d											11.000							
	Chungeraturus	-	1	Land Contraction							Γ																								- survedue.	No. of Lot of Street, and					Γ	
F	0		=	10	:11	R	Δ	T	1	0	N	-	S	F	C	т	1	0	N			1		1.1				-			2	$\square$				-					t	+
۴	<u> </u>		┽			-	-	-	•	μ		1	Ľ		Ĕ	-	-	Ч		•	-			÷				;				┼─			-			┝		-	+	+
┢			ļ	-		_	_			-	┞							_				-		-				<u> </u>	_			ļ								<u> </u>	╞	
S	0	Uf	<b>?</b> ¦(	CE	-	С	0	M	Ρ	U	T	E	R	•																											L	
				IE	B M	-	3	6	0	A COMPANY OF A COM	F	3	0	•											4										1.00	and the factor			A THE REPORT			
Γ		Į	ļ		-					-	Γ										ļ	1	Î		0.000				1			T						Γ			T	
5	P	.1.1		<b>r</b> 7		2	0	M	D	11	T	F	P									+							$\vdash$		-	-									T	++
۲	<u> </u>		-1			Ч	-	141	<u> </u>	ľ	Ľ	-	<u></u>	•	-			-			-	+							┝		_	+		-			-	┝	<del></del>		┢	+
$\vdash$			j	IE	3 M	-	3	6		-	F	3	0	•			; . 	_							÷				_								_	┡			╞	_
	]	-		-						ĺ																		1			(							L	- 1			
1	N	Ρl	Ĵ	Т-	· 0	υ	Т	Ρ	U	Т	·	S	Ε	С	Т	I	0	N	,																							
Γ			!	-					1	-	T					1													Γ			T		-				Γ			T	
╞	1	1 6	i		5	NI	т	0	0	4	+	÷	÷	1	┢─											-	-		+			-			$\vdash$	-		┢─			+	
┡	_		= 1	- (	, <u>U</u>	14	1	<u>_</u>	<u>U</u>		+•		-		-	_	_		-		_	-						-	┢			+			<u>⊢</u>		<u> </u>	┢──			╋	
		1	-	SE	<u> </u>	E	C	T	-	P	μ	R	<u>C</u>	H	A	S	1	Ν	G	_	F	4	LE	-					<b> </b>							1		$\vdash$	 <del>   </del>		$\downarrow$	
		A CONTRACT	i				A	S	S	t	G	Ν		Т	0		•	S	Y	S	0	1	5 '		υ	Ν	1	T -	R	E	C O	R	D	2	5	4 (	) R		υI	NI	T	•
		Marcu	1	SE	L	E	С	Т		Ρ	υl	R	C	Н	A	S	Ε	•	R	Ε	Ρ	0	RI	Γ -	F	1	L	E	Г		a states a	Γ		ł				Γ		1	Т	
$\uparrow$		1	i		Ī	-	^	c	c		1	N	÷	T	6	-	1	c	V	- -	ò	2	- 1			NI		T	6	<b>c</b>	~ ~		0		1	0	2	t.	NI	<u>і т</u>	╞	
╀		;			<u>.</u>		A	3	3		19			-	μ			3	-	3	0	4	1		0	IN	-			<u> </u>		<u> </u>	U			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	٣			╀	
+			Ļ		1				<u> </u>	+	+		+	1	-			_										-	┢			-	(		$\vdash$			┝			+	
1	_	0-	-1	CC	) N	Τ	R	0	L			-	: 												1			1.100													$\bot$	
		1	1	AF	P	L	Y		L	A	s	Т	-	L	1	N	Ε		Т	0		F	OF	RM	-	0	V	ER	F	L	٥W	1										transfer o
Γ			I		-		0	N	1	P		P	in the second se	Ч	•	c	F		R	F	D		рт	•	F	,	1	F	Γ	•		Τ		1				Γ			Т	
+			1				2	1.4		-	10		<u> </u>				<u> </u>		11	- <b>L</b>		2	111			Ľ		- •	4	÷		4					<u> </u>	┶	4		╇	

(Continued on next page)

#### ENVIRONMENT DIVISION ENTRIES (continued)

System/360 model numbers. The Source-Computer and Object-Computer paragraphs may give a model number that consists of a letter followed by a number, for instance, F40. The letter designates the main core storage capacity of the computer, according to the following code:

С	=	8,192	bytes	G	=	131,072	bytes
D	=	16,384	-	Η	=	262,144	
Е	=	32,768		Ι	=	524,288	
F	=	65,536					

The number that follows the letter designates the System/360 model. The number 50, for example, means System/360 Model 50.

Assignment of files to input-output devices. Files are assigned to devices in the File-Control paragraph. For every file, there is an entry that selects the file by name, and assigns it to an "external" name and to a device.



- File name is the programmer-supplied name by which the file is referred to in the COBOL program.
- External name (always enclosed by quotation marks) is the name by which the file will be identified on a job control card at the time that the object program is executed.
- Device class can be UTILITY, DIRECT-ACCESS, or UNIT-RECORD. The UTILITY class is composed of machines that can read and write data sequentially -- magnetic tape, disk, drum, and data cell devices. The DIRECT-ACCESS class is composed of machines that can read and write data randomly -- disk, drum, and data cell devices. The UNIT-RECORD class is composed of printers and card read/punches.
- Device number is the IBM number of a specific device. For example, 2311 means the IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drive. An exception to this rule is device number 2400, which stands for any of the magnetic tape units in the IBM 2400 series (2401, 2402, 2403, or 2404). Device number is sometimes omitted.

## Data Division

#### DATA DIVISION ENTRIES

The most commonly used sections of the Data division are the File section and the Working-Storage section. The File section contains descriptions of the data files to be processed by the program, and descriptions of the data records in those files. The Working-Storage section contains descriptions of work areas and constants.

Ą

#### Sample Data division.

DATA	DIV	1510	Ν.									
		and the second			and design of the							
FILE	E¦ SEC	ΤΙΟΝ	•	haya anan in						an ann an Anna		
	1	an a Marana			1				and the second se			
F D	PURC	HASI	NG-F	ILE								
	RECO	RDIN	G MO	DE I	SF							
	LABE	L RE	CORD	S AR	E OM	ITTE	D			an a carriera		
	DATA	REC	ORD	IS P	URCH	ASIN	G-RE	CORD	•			
			an in the	and a second sec								
01	PURC	HASI	NG-R	ECOR	D.							
	02	сомм	ODIT	Υ.								
	1	03	NUMB	ER			PICT	URE	9(12	).	a Perduction	
		03	DESC	RIPT	ION		PICT	URE	X ( 30	).		
	02	PURC	HASE	•	a de la composición de la comp							a summer and
		03	NUMB	ER			PICT	URE	9(8)			100.000
	1	03	DATE				PICT	URE	9(6)	•		
	02	UNIT	S-PU	RCHA	SED	And and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se	PICT	URE	9(6)	•		
	02	UNIT	-cos	Т			PICT	URE	9(4)	v99.		
	02	ΤΟΤΑ	L-CO	ST			PICT	URE	9(6)	V99.		
1 1	02	CARD	-COD	Е			PICT	URE	X(4)	•		

(Continued on next page)

## DATA DIVISION ENTRIES (continued)

1

## Sample Data division (continued).

La construction of the		1			L		1				1				1		t						1	
FD	PURC	Н	Α	SE	– R	ΕP	0 R	T -	FI	LE	- 1980 A.A.						3							
	RECO	R	D	I N	G	мо	DE	1	S	F	for successful as								1					
	LABE	L	100 C	RE	co	RD	S	AR	Е	OM	1	TTE	D				4	1	ng shekhar					
	DATA		R	EC	OR	D	I S	Ρ	UF	ксн	Α	SE-	R	EPC	R	T-L	11	NE.						
	1	an of the second																						
01	PURC	Н	Α	SE	- R	ΕP	OR	Т-	LI	NE													a source de	
	02	F	1	LL	ER								Ρ	ICT	·υ	RE	X	(10	))	•				
	02	С	0	MM	OD	ΙT	Y -	NU	ME	BER			Ρ	ICT	- U	RE	9	(5)	В	99	В	9(5)		
	02	F	1	LL	ER								Ρ	ICT	υ	RE	X	(6)		1				
	02	С	0	MM	O D	IT	Y –	NA	ME	:		1	Ρ	ICT	υ	RE	X	(30	))	•				
	02	F	1	LL	ER								Ρ	ICT	·υ	RE	X	(6)						
	02	Ρ	U	RC	HA	SE	– D	AT	E				Ρ	ICT	- U	RE	9 9	989	9	B 9	9	•		· ·
	02	F	1	LL	ER		1						Ρ	ICT	- U	RE	X	(4)		1				
	02	Q	U	AN		ΤY			1				Ρ	ICT	υ	RE	Ζ	, Z Z	Z	, Z	Z	9.		
	02	F	I	LL	ER								P	ICT	-υ	RE	X	(6)						
	02	С	0	ST	- P	ER	– U	NI	T	1			Ρ	ICT	- U	RE	\$ 3	\$,\$	\$	\$.	9	9.		
	02	F	1	LL	ER			i Vilia					Ρ	ІСТ	-υ	RE	x	(4)						
	02	Ρ	U	RC	ΗA	SE	- C	0 S	Т				Ρ	ICT	- U	RE	\$ :	\$,\$	\$	\$,	\$	\$\$.9	9.	
	02	F	1	LL	ER					1			Ρ	ICT	- U	RE	х	(14	4)	•				
	1																							
WORK	ING-	s	T	OR	AG	E	SE	СТ	10	DN.														
L	! !	ļ			ļ					: :									L					
77	OLD-	N	U	MB	E R								P	ICT	<u>-</u>  U	RE	9	(12	<u>)</u>	•				
77	QUAN	T	1	ΤY	<u> - T</u>	OT	AL						P	ICT	- <u> </u> U	RE	9	(7)		V	A	LUE	ZERO	
77	PURC	H	A	SE	<u> - c</u>	05	T -	TO	T	<u>AL</u>			P	ICT	<u>-</u>  U	RE	9	(7)	V	99				
	1									4 		1			V	ALU	Е	ZE	R	ο.				

(Continued on next page)

### DATA DIVISION ENTRIES (continued)

		T											
	DATA		<u>   S   O</u>	Ν.									
	ļ												
	FILE	SEC	TION	•									
		1											
Г	FD	STOC	K - TR	ANSA	стіо	N - F I	LE						
file	1	RECO	RDIN	G MO	DEI	SF							-
description		BLOC	к со	ΝΤΑΙ	NS 4	O RE	CORD	S					<b>* *</b>
entry		LABE	L RE	CORD	S AR	E ST	ANDA	RD					item description
		DATA	REC	ORD	IS S	тоск	– TRA	NSAC	TION	•			entries
_		1											
<b>F</b>	01	STOC	K – TR	ANSA	стіо	Ν.			1 E.				
		02	STOC	K-NU	MBER	•	1.1			• •			_ <b></b> _
			03	DIST	RIBU	TION	-CEN	TER,	PIC	TURE	99.		_ <b></b>
			03	CATA	LOG-	NUMB	ER.						
				04	CONT	ROLL	ING-	PART	Υ, Ρ	ICTU	RE 9	99.	<u></u>
1				04	ACCO	UNT-	NUMB	ER,	PICT	URE	9(6)		
record description		1		04	SHIP	PING	-COD	Е, Р	ICTU	RE 9	9.		
uescription .		02	DATE				. 7						
			03	YEAR	, PI	CTUR	E 99	•					
			03	DAY,	PIC	TURE	999	•					
		02	TRAN	SACT	ION-	CODE	, PI	CTUR	ΕX.				<b>→</b>
		02	QUAN	ТІТҮ	. P I	CTUR	E 9(	6).					<b>→</b>
		02	UNIT	-VAL	UE,	PICT	URE	9(4)	V9(3	).			
		1											
	WORK	ING-	STOR	AGE	SECT	ION.							
-													
	77	PRIO	RITY	- LEV	EL,	РІСТ	URE	999,	VAL	UE 4	01.		
I		1				2		i.					
descriptions	77	SUM-	0F - U	NITS	, PI	CTUR	E 9(	7),	VALU	E ZE	RO.		
of index and ont		1					1						
items	77	TOTA	L-VA	LUE,	PIC	TURE	9(6	) V9(	3),	VALU	EZE	RO.	
2000		1											
	77	PREV	lous	- STC	CK-N	UMBE	R, P	ICTU	RE 9	(13)			
,										2 - A			
	01	SUMN	ARY.										
		02	STOC	K – N U	MBER	, PI	CTUR	E 99	B999	B9(6	)B99	•	<b>↓</b> ← ↓
		02	FILL	ER,	PICT	URE	XXXX	, VA	LUE	SPAC	ES,	1.1	<b>_</b> J
record		02	TRAN	SACT	ION-	TYPE	, PI	CTUR	E A (	20).			↓ <b>←</b> →
description		02	FILL	ER,	PICT	URE	XXXX	, VA	LUE	SPAC	ES.		<b>↓</b> → <b>↓</b>
1		02	TOTA	L-QU	ANTI	ΤY,	PICT	URE	z,zz	z,zz	Ζ.		<b>↓ →</b>
		02	FILL	ER,	PICT	URE	XXXX	, VA	LUE	SPAC	ES.		↓ <b>←</b> ⊷⊷↓
		02	TRAN	SACT	ION-	VALL	E. P	ICTU	RE \$	ZZZ	ZZZ.	99.	

## Another sample Data division, with entry types identified.

#### SYSTEM/360 COBOL TERMS FOR UNITS OF DATA

Item: an area used to contain data of a particular kind. (In general, an "item" is the same as a "field".)

Group item: an item that is composed of smaller items.

Elementary item: an item that is not composed of smaller items.

Independent item: any item that is not a record and not a part of a record. Must be an elementary item. Used as a work area or to contain a constant.

Data record: the most inclusive item, usually (though not always) a group item comprising several related items. Sometimes spoken of as the "logical record". (Whenever the term "record" is used in COBOL, data record is implied -- unless label record is specified.)

Label record: a record that contains information about a file. Label records are normally written in files stored on magnetic tape or direct-access devices. Some files (such as card files) do not have label records.

<u>Block</u>: a unit of data, containing one or more data records, that is transferred to or from main storage at one time by an input-output device. Sometimes spoken of as the "physical record". When data records are stored on magnetic tape or direct-access devices, each block generally contains more than one data record.

File: a collection of related data records. The records in a file may have the same or different lengths and formats.

#### FILE DESCRIPTION ENTRY

For each file, there is a file description entry in the File section of the Data division. The entry consists of a level indicator and the file name, plus clauses that describe how many records or characters a block contains, how many characters are in a record, what the recording mode is, whether there are label records, and what data records are in the file. The file description entry will be followed by a record description for each type of record in that file.

-		4							_										_		_		_		A											diversity of the local diversity of the local
	FD		¦Ρ	R	0	D		C	T-T	-1	ו	s A	G	E	_	FI	L	E																	Ì	
			R	E	C	0	R	D	1	V	3	N	10	D	E	1	S		V																	
			B	L	0	C	ĸ		cl		<b>N</b> -	F A		N	S	1	8		R	E	C	DF	20	s												
	-		¦R	E	C	0	R	D	(			TV	A	1	N	S	5	2		Т	0	1.1	3 C	6	(	СН	A	RA	c	T	EF	٦S				
	and spaces of		Ľ	Α	B	E	L		RE	E	20	DF	2D	S	ļ	AR	E		S	Т	AI	NC	Δ	R	D											
			D	Α	Т	Α	an an anger	R	EC		DI	RC	)	1	S	Ρ	R	0	D	U	C	Г-	- L	ls	A	ΞE	-1	RΕ	c	0	RC	).				

Level indicator. File description entries always begin with a level indicator. A level indicator is a special, two-letter reserved word. The level indicator that is used most often is FD, which stands for File Description.

File name. The programmer-supplied name of the file always follows the level indicator.

(Continued on next page)

#### FILE DESCRIPTION ENTRY (continued)

RECORDING MODE clause. The RECORDING MODE clause specifies whether the recording mode in this file is V, F, or U. The clause may appear as RECORDING MODE IS U, but it can also be abbreviated to RECORDING MODE U, or simply RECORDING U. The clause may be omitted when the recording mode is V.

- "Recording mode" means the same as "data record format". The three permissible recording modes are V (Variable length), F (Fixed length), and U (Unspecified length).
- Recording mode V is the only mode in which blocks of two or more variable-length records can be handled. However, it is also possible to have just one record per block and to have fixed record lengths in this mode. The distinguishing feature of mode V is that each data record includes a record-length field and each block includes a block-length field. These fields are not described in the Data division, because provision is automatically made for them.
- In recording mode F, all of the records in a file are the same length. Blocks may contain more than one record, and there is generally a fixed number of records per block. In this mode, there are no record-length or block-length fields.
- Mode U records may be either fixed or variable in length; however, there is only one record per block. There are no record-length or block-length fields.

BLOCK CONTAINS clause. The BLOCK CONTAINS clause tells either how many records are in a block, or how many characters are in a block.

When the number of records per block is given, the clause may appear as BLOCK CONTAINS 25 RECORDS, or simply BLOCK 8 RECORDS. If the number of records in a block varies, the clause tells only how many of the longest records would form the longest possible block. The clause may be omitted when there is only one record per block.

When the number of characters per block is given, the clause specifies the number of bytes that the longest block will occupy in storage.

(Continued on next page)

#### FILE DESCRIPTION ENTRY (continued)

RECORD CONTAINS clause. The RECORD CONTAINS clause specifies how many characters are in the longest data record in the file. More precisely, it specifies how many bytes the longest record will occupy in storage, for instance, RECORD CONTAINS 140 CHARACTERS. It may also give the range of record sizes, as RECORD CONTAINS 82 TO 540 CHARACTERS, or in abbreviated form RECORD 80 TO 160. This clause may be omitted, since the compiler can determine the size of records from the record descriptions.

LABEL RECORDS clause. A LABEL RECORDS clause is required to appear in every file description entry. The clause may indicate that label records are standard, it may give a name for label records, or it may state that label records are omitted.

- When the clause states that LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD, it means that the labels have the standard System/360 label format. In this case, the labels are checked or created automatically, and the label records are not described in the COBOL program.
- When a name is given, for example, LABEL RECORDS ARE BALANCE-TOTALS, it means there are user labels in addition to standard labels. Such additional label records are described in the Linkage section of the Data division (not in the File section), and are processed by "declarative" procedures (separate from the main body of the Procedure division).
- LABEL RECORDS ARE OMITTED means either that the file has no labels at all (as in the case of a card file), or that the file has non-standard labels. (As a rule, non-standard label records are treated as if they were data records. Each label is defined as a separate file, described as a record in the File section, and processed in the main body of the Procedure division.)

DATA RECORD clause. The DATA RECORD clause gives the name of each different kind of record in the file. For example, DATA RECORDS ARE SALES, RETURNS, PAYMENTS, CHARGES. There must be at least one kind of record in the file, and there may be several kinds, so this clause appears in every file description entry. Below the file description entry, there must appear a record description entry for every record that is named in this entry.

#### RECORD DESCRIPTIONS

At least one record description will be found below each file description entry. A record description is written for each type of record in the file; for example, if a file contains four types of records, there will be four record descriptions below the file description entry.

A record description shows the structure of the record: the order in which items appear in the record, and how the items are related to each other. For every item, there is an item description entry that begins with the level number of the item.

01 iF	VRC	HA	S	IN	G	•			1.			and an arrival			11.10				2000 <b>100</b> 100 - 100	a a constant				1
	)2	<u> </u>	; C (	Dι	N	т.		10.000	C. C. Provense				and a summer		a sa dina sa	and the financial			and the second second second			an an an an an an an an an an an an an a		
		03	5	С	<b>A</b>	ΤE	G	0	RY						Ρ	ICT	UF	RE	XX	ζ.				
		03	5	N	U	MB	Ε	R			A COMPANY OF A	100 million - 100 million			Ρ	ICT	UF	RE	9 (	6)				
	)2	sı		τlι	IS	- C	0	DI	Ε			11. AN 14.			Ρ	ІСТ	UF	RE	Χ.					
	)2	TF	RAI	NS	βA	СТ	1	0	۷.			ļ				A LONG TO A			and the second					
1		03	3	V	Έ	ND	0	R	•															
				C	)4		Ν	A	ME						Ρ	ІСТ	UF	RE	X (	25		•		
				С	)4		Ν	U	MB	E	R			and and a second	Ρ	ІСТ	UF	RE	9 (	6)				
		03	3	F	יט	RC	Η	A	SE			1.1					a segle to a se						and a second second	
1				C	)4		D	Α	ΤE							an den war in the sec								
1							0	5	and some second second	M	0	NT	Н		Ρ	ІСТ	UF	RE	99	).				-
				Τ		Ţ	0	5		D	A	Y		an a succession of	Ρ	ICT	UF	RE	99	).				
1 ( Marine 1 ( Marine		of the second					0	5		Y	E	AR			Ρ	ICT	UF	RE	99	).				
		and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second	And and a set of the s	C	)4	100 P. 1	A	M	ου	N	Т				Ρ	ІСТ	UF	RE	9 (	(4)	V	99.		

- Record descriptions always begin with an entry for the level 01 item, which is the record as a whole. Usually, the record is subdivided, and entries for items that make up the record appear below the level 01 entry.
- The item description entries are made in the order in which items appear in the record.
- An entry for a group item is followed by entries for the items that make it up. A group item comprises all the items described under it, until a level number equal to or less than the level number of the group item is encountered.
- Item description entries are usually indented to help the reader comprehend the structure of the record. The entries for each level are indented more than the entries for the preceding level. Indenting is not required, however.
- Level 88 (condition name) entries may appear in a record description. These are not item description entries, and can be ignored when the structure of a record is being analyzed.
- Sometimes a record is treated as an elementary item, with no subdivisions. In such a case, the level 01 entry is the only item description entry in the record description.
#### ITEM DESCRIPTION ENTRIES

There is a separate item description entry for each item. An item description entry always begins with a level number, followed by either a name or the word FILLER, and usually includes one or more descriptive clauses that begin with words like USAGE, PICTURE, VALUE, OCCURS, or REDEFINES.



item description entry

Level number. A level number is always the first element found in an item description entry.

Level number 01 indicates that the item is a record. A record is generally a group of related items, but it may also be an elementary item.

Level numbers 02 through 49 are used for items that are subdivisions of records.

Level number 77 identifies an independent item, which is an elementary item that is not related to other items. An independent item is not a record, and not part of a record. Level 77 items are found only in the Working-Storage section.

Level number 88 designates a condition-name entry, which strictly speaking, is not an item description at all. Instead, a conditionname entry gives a name to one of the values that the preceding item can assume. Level 88 entries are found after elementary items only; however, sometimes there are two or more consecutive level 88 entries after one elementary item.

03	SHIPMEN	S-THIS-M	ONTH, P	ICTURE 9	(4).
4					
	_ level number				

Name or FILLER. Every item description entry contains either a programmer-supplied name or the reserved word FILLER, following the level number.

A name is a <u>data name</u> if it follows level numbers 01-49 or 77; or it is a condition name if it follows level number 88.

FILLER may be found in place of a name, following level numbers 01-49. FILLER is not a name, and therefore, cannot be used to refer to an item in a procedure. It is used in descriptions of items that will not be referred to, usually because the items will not contain any information, or because the information will not be processed.



USAGE clause. The USAGE clause indicates the code that will be used to represent data that is stored in the item. It may be found in descriptions of both elementary and group items. The usage that is specified for a group item applies to all of the items in that group.

The words that specify usage are DISPLAY, COMPUTATIONAL, COMPUTATIONAL-1, COMPUTATIONAL-2, and COMPUTATIONAL-3. The word USAGE, or the words USAGE IS, may also appear in the clause, but these words are optional and generally not written. So if an item's usage is computational, the usage clause will probably consist of the single word, COMPUTATIONAL, but it may also be USAGE COMPUTATIONAL, or USAGE IS COMPUTATIONAL.

The word DISPLAY is also optional, and is often not written. The usage of an elementary item is assumed to be <u>display</u> if some other usage is not specified for it or for any group item that it is part of.

USAGE	clause
-------	--------

	, , <b>,</b> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
: 03	MINIMUM-BALANCE	COMPUTATIONAL-3	- Article - Article
	PICTURE S9(5).		

#### What the usage words indicate:

If the usage is	Then the data code is	Which means that
display	external decimal also called BCD (binary- coded decimal), or EBCDIC (extended binary coded decimal interchange code)	one character is stored in each byte of the item; if the item is used to store a number, the rightmost byte may contain an operation- al sign in addition to a decimal digit
computational	binary	one binary digit is stored in each bit of the item, except the leftmost bit, in which the operational sign is stored
computational-1	internal floating-point, short (full word) format	the item has a special format designed for floating-point arithmetic operations;
computational-2	Then the data code isWhich means thatexternal decimal ulso called BCD (binary- coded decimal), or EBCDIC (extended binary coded)one character is stored in each by item; if the item is used to store the rightmost byte may contain an al sign in addition to a decimal of al sign in addition to a decimal of the item, except the leftmost bit the operational sign is storedone binary digit is stored in each the item, except the leftmost bit the operational sign is storedinternal floating-point, short (full word) formatinternal floating-point, long (double word) formatinternal decimal also called packed decimalthet item all decimal also called packed decimal	part of the item is stored in binary code, and part in hexadecimal code
computational-3	internal decimal also called packed decimal	two decimal digits are stored in each byte of the item, except the rightmost byte, in which one digit and the operational sign are stored

PICTURE clause. PICTURE clauses are found only in descriptions of elementary items. They are required for all elementary items except those whose usage is computational-1 or computational-2. (These floating-point items are not given pictures because they have a definite storage format.)

A picture always tells how many characters will be stored and what kinds of characters they will be. The characters that an item will contain are represented by picture characters such as X, A, or 9. The picture character 9, for example, represents one decimal digit; so, the picture 999 stands for three decimal digits.

In addition to characters with symbolic meanings, pictures often include numeric literals (unsigned whole numbers only) enclosed in parentheses. Such numbers are a shorthand way of repeating picture characters. The number in parentheses tells how many consecutive times the character in front of the parentheses is repeated; in other words, X(6) is another way of writing XXXXXX, and S9(9) means the same as S999999999.

PICTURE clause

COMPUTATIONAL PICTURE S9(6)V99 02 Y-T-D-DEMAND

How to identify an item from its picture.

If the picture contains	and also (possibly)	For example	Then the item is called	And will be used to store
one or more Xs			alphanumeric	characters of any kind; letters, digits, special characters, or spaces
one or more As		A(35)	alphabetic	only letters or spaces
one or more 9s, but no editing symbols	S V P	<u>59(7)V99</u>	numeric	only digits, and possibly an operational sign
one or more editing symbols; Z * \$ . , DB CR + - 0 B	9 V P	\$ZZ,ZZZ.99	report	numeric data that is edited with spaces or certain special characters when the data is moved into the item
an E, in addition to 9s	+ - V	+.9(8)E+99	external floating-point	a decimal quantity in an edited floating-point format that includes spaces or certain special characters

Note: Pictures of all kinds of items may contain numbers in parentheses.

#### PICTURE clause (continued)

What some common picture characters mean.

x	Each X stands for one character of any kind a letter, digit, special character, or space. The picture X(12) indicates that the item will contain twelve characters, but gives no indication of what characters they will be; all twelve could be spaces, or all could be digits, or there could be a mixture of various kinds of characters.
A	Each A stands for one letter or space.
9	Each 9 stands for one decimal digit. Numbers are always described in terms of the <u>decimal</u> digits they are the equivalent of - even when the data code is <u>binary</u> .
S	S indicates that the number has an operational sign. An "operational" sign tells the computer that the number is negative or positive; it is <u>not</u> a separate character that will print as "+" or "-".
v	V shows the location of an assumed decimal point in the number. An "assumed" decimal point is <u>not</u> a separate character in storage.
P	Each P stands for an assumed zero. Ps are used to position the assumed decimal point away from the actual number. For example, an item whose actual value is 25 will be treated as 25000 if its picture is 99PPPV; or as .00025 if its picture is VPPP99.

How picture and usage are related. Certain combinations of picture and usage are not compatible. For instance, an alphabetic item cannot possibly be computational, because letters cannot be represented in binary; this item -- in fact, any item that will store letters, spaces, or special characters -- must have display usage. Therefore, the following kinds of items can only have <u>display</u> usage: <u>alphanumeric</u>, <u>alphabetic</u>, <u>report</u>, and <u>external floating-point</u>.

Digits, on the other hand, can be stored in any data code; so <u>numeric</u> items can have <u>any</u> usage: display, computational, computational-1, computational-2, or computational-3.

Conversely, these rules mean that a <u>display</u> item might have <u>any kind of</u> <u>picture</u>; but that an item with <u>other than display</u> usage can only have a <u>numeric</u> picture. (Except that computational-1 and computational-2 items have no pictures at all.)

VALUE clause. The VALUE clause consists of the word VALUE, or the words VALUE IS, followed by a literal.

This clause is mainly used to assign initial values to certain elementary data items, in particular, to constants. The value assigned to an item remains constant during the execution of the object program, unless it is changed by a procedure in the program. (This use of the VALUE clause is permitted in the Working-Storage section, but not in the File section.)

77	DISCOU	JNT, USA	GE COMP	UTAT	IONAL,	
		RE SV99,	VALUE	.02.		
				,		

#### VALUE clause

A different use of the VALUE clause is found in level 88 (conditionname) entries. There the clause specifies the data value which the condition name will represent. (This use of the VALUE clause is permitted in both the File section and the Working-Storage section.)



VALUE clause

OCCURS clause. An OCCURS clause indicates that an item is repeated with no change in its usage or picture. It specifies the number of times the item is repeated, for instance, OCCURS 100 TIMES, or just, OCCURS 100. OCCURS clauses are used to define groups of identical items that will store related information, such as data tables.

<b>!</b> 02	SCOR	Е, Р	ΙCTU	RE S	999				
1	СОМР	υτατ	IONA	L-3,	OCCURS	50	TIMES	•	

OCCURS clause

REDEFINES clause. A REDEFINES clause signifies that this entry gives another name and description to an item that was just previously described. The word REDEFINES is written right after the data name, and is followed by the name of the item that is being redefined.

When an item is redefined, a new area of storage is <u>not</u> set aside for it; instead, the same area of storage may be called by this name as well as by the previous name. Redefining is done when different names or descriptions are desired for the same item, for instance, when the item may hold different kinds of information, or may be processed in different ways, under different conditions.



"LEDGER" will occupy the same storage area as "ACCOUNT"

Procedure Division

#### PROCEDURE DIVISION ENTRIES

The Procedure division generally consists of a series of paragraphs, which may optionally be grouped into sections. Each paragraph has a programmer-supplied name, and may contain a varying number of entries.

### Sample Procedure division.

Ŀ		0	2	FI	ור	IG	JE	1	n	1	V	1		T	10	J	1	t	1	T	1		1		1	-						T	T	T	1	T			1	T	T	П
F	1	H		<u> </u>	+	+	₽	-	μ	-	V	+	<u> </u>	Ŧ	+	<u> </u>	÷	┢─	-	+-	+	-	1		+	-	-	-		-	-	╉	+		+	┢─	Η	+	+	+	+	+
┡					+	+	+	-						╇	+	-		┢	-	+-	-		_		+					_	_	+	-	-	-				+	+	+	+
E	3 E	G	1	Nľ	N	<u>  N</u>	IG	-	0	F	-	J (	DE	3	,																		-	_	_						$\perp$	
		1		01	P	EIN		1	N	Ρ	υ	Т	F	אנ	J F	<b>R</b> (	CH	IA	S	51	N	G	-1	F		L	E,															
Γ			1	01	P	ΞN	T	0	U	Т	Ρ	U <sup>.</sup>	Г	F	ין	JF	۲C	H	Δ	S	E	_	R	EI	Ρ	0	R٦	Г-	F	1		E,									Τ	
t	T			M		V F	t	S	Ρ	Α	С	E	s	1		ז	P	tu	R	2 0	н	A	S	E	_	R	EF	0	R	Т	-1	T	1	N E		Γ	Π	$\square$	T	$\uparrow$	Ť	Π
t	T			R	F		1	P		R	c.	H	Δ			- N (	<u>`</u> _	F	1	1	F		_		1	-	T					T	T			$\square$	$\square$		+	+	+	+
ł		-					1		Ĕ	-		<u></u>		+	~ /	$\frac{1}{2}$	/ -	ť			NI	2			╞		10		$\vdash$		+	+	+		+	┢	╈	$\vdash$	+	+	+	+
┞	+	+	-		+	+	¥	+	+	E	N	ע	1	4		<u>ר</u>		$\mathbb{P}$	1-		. IN	μ	_			_	00		ŀ		_	+	-	-	+	┝	+	$\vdash$	+	+	+	+
Ļ	-				_	_	+	-	-					╇	-	-	-	┢	-	+	+				_			-	<b> </b>			╇	+	_			+		4	+	+	-
Į	<u>)</u> E	<u> </u>	A		<u> </u>	- F	ľ	20	C	E	S	S	1 1	4	3	•	_ <u> </u>		-	_	-				_				<b> </b>		_	+	-	_	-	_	+		$\rightarrow$	$\downarrow$	+	$\square$
	and a specific street of	100 A 100 A 100		M	<u>0</u>	VE		N	U	M	В	E	R	0		-	C	20	N	11	10	D	1	T	Y	- Anno - A	T	<u>)</u>	0	L	D	<u>-</u> [	11	JN	A B	E	<u>R</u>	,				
	No. of Astronomy							0	M	IM	0	D	1-	rŀ	<b>r</b>   -	- 1	۱L	νĮν	۱E	3 E	R																•					
T				M	0	VE		D	E	S	С	R	11	5-	Г	1 (	NC	1	C	) F		c	0	M	М	0	D	I T	Y		T	Ъ				Γ	Γ	Π	Π	T	Τ	
t	-					T	1	· In	M	IM	6	n	1-	r,	1.	_ P	J L		F	-									T			T			-	T	T	Π	T	T	T	$\top$
t	+	-		<b>h</b> .						T	Ē	5		-	1		16		· L	1 1	C	E		T	0		DI	ID	t	Ц	^		-			t	Ē		H	+	┿	+
ł		-	1	h a			+				Ë	~		1.				1.		) /~ \ _	<u>, 7</u>	F	-	$\frac{1}{2}$	-	0			Ĕ	,		뿟	-			╀	-	•	+	+	+	+
╀		-	-	M		VĽ	4			<u>  </u>	μ	2	-	4	ון	R		14	12			-	-	<u> </u>	_	Q			-	1	1	4	•		-	+-		-	H	$\rightarrow$	+	
Ł		_		M	<u>0</u>	VE	1	U	IV	11	T	-	<u>C (</u>	2	S	T		ΓĮC	)	0	20	<u> S</u>	T	_	Ρ	E	<u>R</u> ·	<u>-U</u>	N	1	T	ᅪ	_		-		+		Ц	$\downarrow$	+	$\square$
L			10 Tanàn 1	M	0	VE		T	. C	) T	Α	L	-0		<u>)</u>	S	Γ	ד	<u> </u>	)	P	U	R	С	Η	Α	SI	<u>E -</u>	<u>-</u>	0	S	T	•						Ш			
	a na je njene s	-		A	D	D	l	JN		Т	s	-	P۱	JI	2	cl	44	١s	SE	EC	)	Т	0	*****	Q	υ	AI	NT	1	Т	Y٠	_ ·	r (	רכ	ГА							
T				A	D	D	1	0	T (	· A	L	_	С		S	Т	٦	rlo	)	F	νU	R	С	Н	A	s	E	- C	:0	S	T	_[-	r (	ריכ	ГА				Π	T	T	
t		-			F	1		15	Т		l.	1	NI	╞	1	ì	MF	21	1			P		R	c	н	Δ	SE	Ē	R	F	pla	ור	21	r -	1	Ī	N	F	+	+	T
t	Ť	1	t		•		Ŧ,				5			+	2	•		;†;			-	t	H	••	Ē	<b> </b>			ha		<u> </u>		-	-		f	1	Ť	Ħ	+	+	+
ł	-		1	 	+	-	ť				F			4	V		41	4			2	ť.	i			┡	3		1		-	+				┢	+		$\mathbf{H}$	$\rightarrow$	┽	
1	-	- 11000	No secular	i			JF	טי	JF	۲C	Η	Α	S	Eŀ	-	RI	EF	יוכ	) F	21	-	·L		N	E		A	FIT	E	R			ר י	V /	1/A	1C	<u>;  </u>	N	G		1	•

# PROCEDURE DIVISION ENTRIES (continued)

Sample	Procedure	division	(continued) .

•				+	+-	+	+	<b>+</b>	+	+	+	<del> </del>					+	-+					<b>—</b>		+		<b>—</b>															<b></b>			-+	
R	E	A	Di	- <u> </u> N	<u>I</u> E	X	Τ		C	A	R	D	•																							100.00								1.000		
			ŀ	RE	: /	D		Ρ	U	R	С	Η	A	S	1	N	G	-	F	1	L	E	;																							C PRODUCTION OF T
			1				A	Т		E	N	D	,		G	0		Т	0		Ε	N	D	_	0	F	-	J	0	в	•			Γ											Τ	
Π			!	IF	•	N	U	M	B	E	R		0	F		С	0	M	M	0	D	1	Τ	Y		1	S		N	0	Т		EC		A	L		Т	0						T	
Π			1	T	T	T	Ь	L	D		N	U	Μ	В	Ε	R		1	Ρ	E	R	F	0	R	М		Т	0	T	A	L	_	RC	a lu	Т	1	N	E						T	1	1
		T	!(	GC	<b>)</b>	T	0	Ē	D	F	T	Δ	1	1	_	Ρ	R	0	c.	F	S	S	1	N	G			-		-	_		-	F	Ī				È				Π	1	†	-
H			1		Ť	Ť	f	┢	Ē	T	†		ŀ			•		4	-	-					-	•								+	1				-	T				+	+	+
F	0	T	<u>م ا</u>	+	F		t	T	1	N	F	Ì		-		-	-	1			in the second				Π					┫	_			+	+			-	-		-		H	-	+	+
H	<u> </u>	-	<u>А</u> рі Ів				F	- -				•	<b>c</b>	·	T	^				D	2		•	c	F	_	D	5			D	-		+	N	c		-			-		-	-	+	-
Н	_		f				+	0	<b>P</b>	A	1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	+		<u> </u>	-			<u>R</u>	し	Π	A	2	E		<u>π</u>			븨	<u>ת</u>			╬	N	<u> </u>	•				-		-		╉	
		-	ji L	NC				Q	U		IN	1			T	_		9	1	<b>A</b>	<u>L</u>			0		Q	U	A	N	4	1	-	Υ.	-		_	_	_	_	_	_		$\vdash$		+	-
		-	J	<b>N</b> C	<u>}</u>	<u>/E</u>	-	P	U			H	<u>A</u>	S	E	-	C	익	S	T	-	Т	0	Т	<u>A</u>	L		T	0		P	U	RC	H	A	S	E		<u>C</u>	0	S	Т	•		4	_
			)	NC	)/(	<u>/</u> E	L	Z	E	R	0	S		T	0		Q	U	<u>A</u>	N	Т	1	T	Y	-	T	0	T	A	L	2			╞			_						$\square$		┛	_
			i				P	U	R	C	Н	A	S	Ε	-	С	0	S	T	_	T	0	T	A	L	•																				
			<u>\</u>	MR	2	Т	E		P	U	R	С	Н	Α	S	E		R	E	Ρ	0	R	T	_	L	1	Ν	Ε		A	F	T	ER		A	D	۷	Α	N	С	1	N	G	ŀ	1	•
							ľ																									and service like in												ALCONTRACTOR		and a second second second
Ε	N	D	-¦(	DF	· -	- J	0	В		Ι	Γ																			Τ		1000 PM 100 PM													Τ	T
Π			ŀ	PE	F	F	0	R	M		Т	0	Т	Α	L	_	R	o	U	Т	1	N	E							1				Γ											Τ	
П			!(		c	s	E	Ē	P	U	R	С	Н	Α	S	1	N	G	_	F	1		E			Ρ	U	R	C	нΪ	Α	S	E-	R	E	Ρ	0	R	т	_	F	1	L	E	Ţ	T
H			!r	)	c	P	Ē	à	Ŷ		Ī	P	11	R	Ċ	H	Δ	ŝ	F	-	R	F	Ρ	, 0	R	T	-	F	1	N	1	S	HF		1	-	Ξ					İ		Ŧ	Ť	1
$\square$	_		1		ť	-	t.	P		N	$\vdash$	C	0	N	S	0		F					i	-		÷		•		-	•			f	t	-							Π	-	$\dagger$	+
$\mathbf{H}$		-			-		ť					Ľ	5		3		<u> </u>	4	•							-				-			-	+	-		Η	-					$\vdash$	+	╉	$\neg$
			- IS	2	1	11	1	K	U	IN	•	l											Ц											+	1	<u> </u>		L	1 				$\vdash$		4	



#### PROCEDURES

A <u>procedure</u> is a paragraph or section in the Procedure division. Procedures contain two kinds of entries: header entries and <u>sentences</u>. Hence, any entry (in a procedure) that is not a header is a <u>sentence</u>. A sentence, in turn, is composed of one or more <u>statements</u> that specify actions. Most statements begin with a verb that indicates the action to be taken (for instance, MOVE, ADD, READ, GO, or STOP); some statements begin with the word IF, which calls for the testing of a condition.

• The shortest procedure is a paragraph consisting of a header entry and one sentence.

INITIALIZE. MOVE ZEROS TO CONTROL-TOTAL.

• A longer procedure may contain several sentences. The paragraph header may optionally appear on a line by itself.

INS	ERT	- 1	IE	W	-	R	E	C	OF	R	D			Γ				ľ	T		Γ		T	T	T					T		
	MO	VE	·	С	A	R	D	- minut	RE	Ξl	C	0	RD		Т	0		οι	TL	Ρ	U	Т	-F		С	0	R	D		Т	Π	
	WR	17	E		0	U	T	P	U-	τŀ	-1	RI	EC	0	R	D			and the second second		Γ		Ì	Τ						Τ	Π	
	RE	AC	)	С	A	R	D		F	1		E	;	Γ										T		Γ			T	T	T	
	1		A	Т		E	N	D		T	G	0	Т	0		F	1	N	IS	н	-	R	UN	1.	Ī				1	T	Π	
	¦GO	T	0		Т	E	S	T	-F	र	E	C	DR	D	_	C	0	DE	Ξ.		Γ		1	T	T	T			T	T	$\uparrow \uparrow$	

• A sentence may contain only one statement (as in the above examples), or more than one statement (as shown below).

	MO	v	E		N	Α	Μ	E		Т	0		E	MF	PL	0	Y	Ε	E	,	M	0	V	'E										
	SO	C	1	Α	L	-	S	Ε	С	U	R	1	Т	<b>Y</b> -	- N	U	M	B	E	R	T	0		A	С	Ċ	0	U	N	Т	,			
	IA D	D		1		Т	0		N	υ	M	B	Ε	R	0	F		Т	R	AI	NS	A	C	;Т	1	0	N	S						

• Every procedure has a programmer-supplied name, which is given in the header entry. This name is used to refer to the procedure, for instance, when specifying a branch to the procedure.

#### PROCEDURAL WORDS

The most commonly used actions are listed below, alphabetically. The function of each word is summarized, and a sample sentence using the word is given.

ACCEPT. Input. Obtains up to 80 characters of data from the system input device (which might be a disk file, tape drive, card reader, etc.), or up to 72 characters from the console keyboard. Used to read lowvolume data, such as information needed to initialize program switches, balance totals, or serial numbers. Not used to read files of data (see READ).

I and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se	 	in the second second second		
1400		ATION		

ADD. Arithmetic. Adds two or more numbers. Puts the sum into the data item named after the word TO, unless there is a GIVING clause. If GIVING is specified, the sum is put into the data item named after the word GIVING, and it is edited according to the item's picture; the value of this item is not added. (Numbers can also be added by using the verb COMPUTE.)

ADD	REGULAR-PAY,	OVERTIME-PAY	, BONUS,
	GIVING TOTAL	-EARNED.	

CLOSE. Input-output. Terminates the processing of one or more data files. Such actions as checking and creating end-of-file labels are done automatically when a file is closed. Used after processing is finished for any file that was opened (see OPEN).

	CLOSE	OLD-MASTER-FILE,	NEW-MASTER-FILE.
-	*····		

COMPUTE. Arithmetic. Computes the value of the data item, literal, or formula written to the right of the equal sign; and puts that value into the item named after the verb. Can add, subtract, multiply, divide, or exponentiate numbers; or combine these operations. (May be used in place of the other arithmetic verbs: ADD, SUBTRACT, MULTIPLY, DIVIDE.) Edits the result according to the receiving item's picture.

COM	PU	T	E	W	1	тн	IH	0	LD		N	G-	Т	AX	=		1	8	*	(	G	R	0	S	S	_		
	N	υ	ME	3E	R	-0	F	_	DE	P	E	ND	E	NTS	\$	×	1	3	).									

#### PROCEDURAL WORDS (continued)

. . . . . . . . .

DISPLAY. Output. Puts data out on the system output device (which might be a disk file, tape drive, etc.), for printing later. Can also punch out data, or type it on the console typewriter. Data displayed cannot exceed 120 characters when put on the system output device, but cannot exceed 72 characters if punched or typed. Used for low-volume output, such as exception records or messages to the operator. Not generally used to write files of data (see WRITE).

DISPLAY	RECORD	NUMBER '	ITEM-NUMBER	
' I S	OUT OF	SEQUENCE '	UPON CONSOLE.	

DIVIDE. Arithmetic. Divides one number into another. Puts the quotient into the data item named after the word INTO, unless there is a GIVING clause. If GIVING is specified, the quotient is put into the data item named after the word GIVING, and it is edited according to the item's picture; the value of this item is not used in the division. (Numbers can also be divided by using the verb COMPUTE.)

$\square$	D	1	V	1	DE		N	i.	J N	ΛE	3 E		2 -	-(	) F	- -	- 9	зт	υ	D	E	νT	s		IN	ĪΤ	0				T	 	T	T	
	1				sι	JN	1-	ŀ	) [		- /	AL	. L	-	-0	ŝF	۲ A	۱D	Ε	S	,	G	1	۷	IN	IG			or other and when the	Concentration of the	Ι	 			
		and a second second second			$\Delta $	/ E	R		1	3 E		- 0	) F	<b>२</b> /	4 E	E																			

GO TO. Sequence control. Causes a branch to a procedure in the program. The normal flow of control is resumed at the beginning of that procedure. (Contrast with PERFORM, which causes a return branch as well.)

									_	 																					-					
_																							 _	_		_		_		 		 			 	 
				 _						 										_																
 				 						 						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·																				
	5			 									•				- 6																× *		 1	
				 _		 																									_				 	
				 _						 			,								 		 								_			_	 	
				 																	 	_									_			_		
 		-	- 1		_	_	_	_		 _	-	-	· · · · · · ·	_							 											 				
 			_			_							_									_									_					
 				 																	 	_			-						_			_		
 				 					_	 _													 				5		2			 				
				 		 _																					N				_					
				 _					_																						_				 	 
				 																		_									_					
										_					-	× .																 				
		_	_	 																		_														
				 		_				 		_		_	_																_					
				 	the second second	 							· · · · ·																		_					
	and a second second											_							_		 	_	 		_			in the second				 				
				 		 				_							-	_																_		 _

IF. Sequence control. Causes alternate paths of action to be taken, depending on whether it finds the description of a data condition to be true or false when it evaluates the data. The word IF is followed by the description of the condition, followed by the actions to be taken if the description of the condition is true. Then, optionally, may come to the word ELSE or OTHERWISE, followed by the actions to be taken if the description of the condition is false.

l l F	DEMAND IS GREATER THAN STOCK-ON-HAND,
	ADD DEMAND TO BACK-ORDERS,
	MOVE BACK-ORDERED TO ACTION-CODE:
ют	HERWISE,
	SUBTRACT DEMAND FROM STOCK-ON-HAND,
	MOVE ORDER-FILLED TO ACTION-CODE.

### PROCEDURAL WORDS (continued)

. . . . . . .

MOVE. Data movement. Moves data from one area of main storage to another. Converts the data (for instance, from decimal to binary) if required to fit the description of the receiving item. Edits the data (inserts, deletes, or replaces characters) if the picture of the receiving item calls for it.

I	Τ	MOVE	CURRENT-BAL	ANCE TO	AMOUNT-DUE IN	
I			CUSTOMER-BIL	.L.		

MULTIPLY. Arithmetic. Multiplies one number by another. Puts the product into the data item named after the word BY, unless there is a GIVING clause. If GIVING is specified, the product is put into the data item named after the word GIVING, and it is edited according to the item's picture; the value of this item is not multiplied. (Numbers can also be multiplied by using the verb COMPUTE.)

Γ		Γ	M	UL	_1	-11	P	L	Y		Q	U	A	N	Т	1	ΓY	•	B	r	U	N	1	т-	-C	0	SI	r,					
Γ	Τ		1	$\prod$	Τ	G		V	1	Ň	G		E	X	TI	EI	NC	)E	D	-lc	;0	S	Т										

NOTE. Program comments. Allows programmers to write explanatory sentences which will be printed in the program listing, but which serve no other purpose during compilation. A note can be any length and can contain any words or characters. If NOTE is the first word of a paragraph, all of the sentences in the paragraph are treated as notes.

Γ			l	N	0	Т	E		ŀ		_		Т	•		S		R	2	)U	1	Γ	N	J E	Ξ	С	0	M	Ρ	U	TE	-	S		Tł	-1	E		1	Q	×	- 9	)	•	Ι		
F			.					F	-	U	D	G	E		F	A	С	Т	Ċ	R			ι	ו	SE		)		Ν		DE	E	Т	E	RI	N	1	N	1	N	G	;			Ι		
Τ		I						F	2	E	0	R		E	R		P	C		N		15	\$	F	=0	F	2	W	1	D	G	I	Т	S													

OPEN. Input-output. Makes one or more data files ready for reading or writing. Input files are named after the word INPUT; output files after OUTPUT. Such actions as checking and creating beginning-of-file labels are done automatically when a file is opened. Opening does not make input records available for processing; a READ statement is required for that. A file must be open before a READ or WRITE statement can act on it. (See READ, WRITE, CLOSE.)

-								•	<b>.</b>		+	-	-+					_									•			-			 	÷			• • •		+	+	+-		-+		_	-+-	-+	
l	1				D	P	E	N		1		JF	기	J	т		ol	L	D	4	М	A	S	Т	E	lR	-	F	1	L	E		ľ							-								
t	Ť	+	-	1	-	÷	_	-	$\vdash$	F	t	Ť	+	-+		+	-	-	-	-t		-	-	ŀ		Ë		,	÷	F	F		$\vdash$	1	t	+	t	+	+	t	t	$\dagger$	+	+	+	+	+	+
L				I					T	<b>I</b> F	RI/	1/	1	5	A	C	T		0	N		F	1	L	E	;																						
T	T	T	•	T	Ι				6		1-				-			5				٨	c	T	F			E	1	1	F				Τ		Γ	1	T		Т			Т	Т	Т		Τ
Т									<b>IU</b>	1L				J		_	N		v		M	A	Э		E	П		Г				٠			1			1	1									

#### PROCEDURAL WORDS (continued)

PERFORM. Sequence control. Causes a branch to a procedure or series of procedures, and following their execution, a return branch to the statement after the PERFORM statement. Sets up the linkage for procedures to serve as closed subroutines. Also used to control the execution of loops. (Contrast with GO TO, which causes a branch but not a return.)

4		4	4	1		í.	1		2					-	- 4						. 2			1				-				4	1			1	- 2		I					- 1						 6	×	1				- 2	1	_	. ÷		4		8	
		1	1	1	г	Т	- 1		Г			Т		1	Т			Т			T			Т						Т		T	Т			Т	- 1		1	Т		1	1	í		_		-			T	1	- 1		1	Ŧ					-	1	-	<b>T</b>
		ŧ.	1	1		1.	- 1		10	- 1	^	1.	•	ia .	<b>a</b> ł			1		-		2		. i.				-		1.	^	1.	18	1 3	5	1.				۱I	-	1.	- 1.	n.i			3				1	1	- 1		Ł	- 1	- 1		4		1	1	1	
		ł	1	1	11-	- 11	- 1	н	1	- 1	( )	i i	~	: N			н.	11		: •	1		11	11		R	1		-	- 11	11	1 L	1		10					71		11	- <b>H</b>	16	N		4	- 1			1	1	- 1		•	-			1		1	1		
		2	2	È.	4	- 14	- 1	• •	1	- 1	v	11	•	(U V	11			•		<u>ا</u>	• •	<b>U</b>	ľ		•					-11	v	3 <b>6</b> -	•		v	1	-	_	9 <b>.</b> –	٦1		÷ •	- 83	9			Ł	- 1	- i		÷.	- Ł	- 1			÷.	- 1		1		1.	1		
	_	*****			_				÷.			÷.	-	_	-	_	-	- 1	-		+	1.1	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-			-		_	-		-		-	-	+	- t -	-			-	-		 _	+			-	•				÷	_	+	+	-	-

READ. Input. Makes a data record from an input file available for processing. For sequential files, such as tape and card files, the READ statement contains an AT END clause, which specifies actions that are to be taken after the last record of the file has been processed. A READ statement is valid only if the file is open (see OPEN).

	EAM-LOADING-	-FILE;	
TA	END, GO TO	CLOSE-FILES	

STOP. Sequence control. Stops the execution of the object program, either permanently or temporarily. If STOP is followed by the word RUN, execution is stopped permanently; this would be done at the end of the job, or when a serious data error made it impossible to continue the run. If STOP is followed by a literal, such as a message to the operator, the literal is typed out and then execution is delayed until the operator takes required steps; execution is resumed at the statement after the STOP statement.

T

SUBTRACT. Arithmetic. Subtracts one or more numbers from another number. Puts the difference into the data item named after the word FROM, unless there is a GIVING clause. If GIVING is specified, the difference is put into the data item named after the word GIVING, and it is edited according to the item's picture; the value of this item is not used in the subtraction. (Numbers can also be subtracted by using the verb COMPUTE.

SUBTRACT	SAVINGS-BONDS,	BLUE-CROSS,	
CHAR I	TY-CONTRIBUTION	IS FROM EARNIN	GS.

WRITE. Output. Releases a record for an output file. The actual transfer of this record to an output device may not occur until sometime later; in particular, if there are to be two or more records per block, the record may be held until there are enough records to fill a block. When the record is to be printed or punched, the WRITE statement contains an AFTER or AFTER ADVANCING clause to specify carriage control or stacker selection. A WRITE statement is valid only if the file is open (see OPEN).

		Γ	Γ	5	/R	2	Т	·F	·T	T	1	N	v	F	. N	1 T	rla	2	R	Y	_	R	F	C	0	R	D	Γ	Γ	T	T	Γ	Γ	T	I	Γ	Γ	T		Γ	T	T		Τ		1
4	-	 ÷	÷	_		-	+ -	-	-	+		-	-	-	÷		-	-+		-	-	<u> </u>	-	+	-	÷		 1	Ļ	-	+	+	 	-	1	•	÷	<u>i</u>	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	•

#### TEST-CONDITIONS

Types of conditions that can be tested in IF statements.

Relation test. Consists of two "operands" with relational words or symbols written between them. Compares the values of the operands to see if their relation is the same as specified.

Relations that can be specified: EQUAL TO [=], NOT EQUAL TO [NOT =], GREATER [>], NOT GREATER [NOT >], LESS [<], NOT LESS [NOT <].

The operands may be data items, literals, and arithmetic expressions. A data item may be compared with another data item, with a literal, or with an arithmetic expression. An arithmetic expression may also be compared with a literal, or with another arithmetic expression. Two literals may not be compared.

When an arithmetic expression is written in a conditional statement, the value of the expression is calculated first, before the comparison is made.

+		 		F		P	1	4	Y	N	AE	ŧ	N	Т	•		S		L	E	s	ç	5	•	г	Н	A	N		P	F	٦E	ĪV	1	(	D	υ	S	63515	B	Α	L	1	11	N	С	E	 +	 t	
T		 	1	 1	on room	-	T	3	υ	F	RF	र्र	E	N	٦	 -//	41	M	0	υ	IN	٦	r.	- (	Б	υ	E		-	ľ	ľ	) I	S		; (	o	υ	N	Т	2									 T	
T			1				T					T	G	С	)	rla	5		Ρ	A	R	٦	Г	1	A	L	-	Ρ	A	Y	1	ME	N		F						-									

Sign test. Consists of the name of a data item, or an arithmetic expression, followed by the specification of a sign condition. Determines whether the number, or the value of the arithmetic expression, matches the specified condition.

Sign conditions that can be specified: POSITIVE, NOT POSITIVE, NEGATIVE, NOT NEGATIVE, ZERO, NOT ZERO. The value zero is considered to be neither positive nor negative. (For a zero item in storage, the sign, if any, is ignored.)

IF DIFFERENCE IS POSITIVE,																	£		د	 è												 		-	-		-	-		deserves	 	-	-
	Г	T		1					-				_							-	-		Ι.	-		-							-						Land Line of				
	L			1	IF	•	D		F	F	E	IR	E	. N		IF			S	P	U	5	Ш	1	V	<u>L</u>	2		T	-		<u> </u>		-	-		1	1		L	 	1	
	Г	Т	Π	1	T	Т		0	,			6			5		-	-	-	-		5	E			-	0	A	1	~ /	~ 1	 1	h.	A	-	l_	n	1	-	5	 A		

Note: A sign test is another way of stating a relation test for numbers, since "positive" means greater than zero, "negative" means less than zero, and "zero" is, of course, equal to the literal "0".

#### TEST-CONDITIONS (continued)

Condition-name test. Consists of a name called a "condition name", with no other words or symbols. Tests whether a data item has a specific value; however, neither the name of the data item nor the value are written in the IF statement.

					é			-									- 4			<u> </u>				X	4					i		 					<u></u>	
I	-				1 5		C	0	M	P	11	Т	F	R	_	PI	RI	nic	:le	2 4	N		F	R														
ŧ		-	_			+	+	Ψ	IVI		12	Ľ	<u> </u>		$\rightarrow$		4	4	4	4	14				<u> </u>			_	 	-	$\vdash$	 -+	┢──	-			┢─┼	
and the second se				1			ľ	<b>IP</b>	E	R	F	0	R	M		s /	41		١F	2 Y	' -	1	IN	CF	٦S	AI:	SE		ł			-		-				
4	_	أسبب	أسععها		-	-		<u> </u>	1	1	1	<u> </u>	-	_		-		_	_	-	1	-					-		 _			 -			<u></u>	_		

The condition name represents the condition that exists when the data item has a specific value. It is defined in the Data division, where the condition name and the value may be found in a level-88 entry, following the description of the data item which is to be tested.

Here is how the condition name used in the above example might be defined:

*	-	-	-		-+	m			-		-	÷		÷		-+				÷			nseeфrine				+	agamaa c		+			+			+	+-+		+	-	 t
	ł			1	D	2			J	0	B	-	lC	L	A	S	S		FI		C	٩.	T	10	)N	-0	: 0	D	Ε.	F		C	T	UF	٦E		9	9.			
t	1		+	سقیسیں و	1	-	1	7	~	0		6	5		5	. 1		-		t,		~	~	1			1-	-		1	,		~		20	T	Π	-	T	T	T
				ľ					8	8		C	0	M	P	U	1	E	K -	-[[	21	1	$\underline{0}$	<u>i   t</u>	۲A	MN	1E	. <del>K</del>	2	VA	VL.	U	L		12						 Ц

Interpretation of this example: A job-classification code is one of the data items in the records that are to be processed. The name COMPUTER-PROGRAMMER represents the code value 72. Therefore, the IF sentence above means, "If the record contains job code 72, perform the salary-increase procedure."

Note: A condition-name test is another way of testing whether a data item is equal to a literal.

#### TEST-CONDITIONS (continued)

Overflow test. A special type of condition-name test. Determines whether the forms in a printer are at the end of a page. (The end of a page is recognized when the printer senses a hole punched in channel 12 of the carriage control tape.)

IF P	AGE-IS-FULL,
	WRITE OVERDUE-ACCOUNT-LINE AFTER
	SKIPPING-TO-NEXT-PAGE;
	OTHERWISE, WRITE OVERDUE-ACCOUNT-LINE
l l	AFTER SPACING-2-LINES.

The form-overflow condition name is defined in an APPLY entry in the Environment division. Here is how the name used in the above example might be defined:

• • • • • • • •	East of Carl	$L^{\mu} \psi_{\mu\nu}$	
APPL	Y PAGE-IS-FUL	L TO FORM-OVERFLOW	
	ON OVERDUE-AC	COUNT-LISTING.	

<u>Class test</u>. Consists of the name of a data item followed by the specification of a class. Examines the item to see if the data it contains belongs to the specified class. Classes that can be specified: ALPHABETIC, NOT ALPHABETIC, NUMERIC, NOT NUMERIC.

				 																		•																	 	
		11	F	A	С	Т	·	1	V	1	Т	Y	-	R	4	T\		N	IG		1	s		A	L	Ρ	Η	AI	3	E	Т	Ĺ	С	,						
	-	1			G	0	)	ŀ	Т	0		H	1	G	1	1-	A	С	T	1	V	1	T	Y	-	A	N	AI	_	Y	S	I	S							

An item is

- alphabetic if it consists only of letters, and possibly spaces.
- not alphabetic if it contains any digits or special characters.
- <u>numeric</u> if it consists only of digits, and possibly an operational sign.
- <u>not numeric</u> if it contains any spaces, letters, or special characters.

#### FLOW OF CONTROL

The way in which control flows through procedures in a COBOL program represents the sequence in which instructions in the object program will be executed. How control will flow depends on the kinds of statements in the Procedure division, and their arrangement.

Starting point. Control starts at the first statement of the first procedure in the division, provided that there are no declaratives. If there are any declaratives, control starts at the first procedure after the END DECLARATIVES entry.

- Declaratives are special, optional procedures that are grouped together at the beginning of the Procedure division. Declarative procedures are logically separate from the main body of the Procedure division; that is, they cannot be affected by the flow of control through other procedures.
- If the program contains declaratives, a DECLARATIVES header will appear on the line after the PROCEDURE DIVISION header, and an END DECLARATIVES header will appear on the line after the last declarative procedure.

Sequence. Control automatically flows from one statement to the next statement in sequence, and from one paragraph to the next, except when

- a GO TO statement causes a branch.
- an IF sentence causes control to jump over certain statements.
- a PERFORM statement gives control temporarily to another procedure.
- a STOP statement causes a delay in execution, or terminates the run.

Branching. When a GO TO or PERFORM statement causes a branch to a procedure, control is transferred to the first statement of that procedure. It is permissible for a GO TO statement to send control back to the beginning of the procedure that the GO TO is part of.

FLOW OF CONTROL (continued)



Flow of control through an IF sentence that does not contain ELSE or OTHERWISE.

#### Example.

-	1	1				1	F		B	A	L	A	N	С	E	Ì	1	s		N	E	G	A	Т	ī	V	E		Ĺ	T	T	T	1				Γ		T	T	1		1
	1	2								M	0	V	E		•	E	BA	L	Α	N	С	Ε		1	S		1	N	Y	<u>'</u> (	24	JF	२	F	A	V	0	F	2	•			
	;	3												Т	C	)	M	E	S	S	A	G	Ε	-/	4	R	E	Α.															
		4			1	W	R	1	Т	E		С	U	S	T	C	M	E	R	-	В	1	L	Ŀ	_	R	E	CC	F	2 0	<u>)</u>												

The data item (BALANCE) is evaluated to see if it is negative. If it is negative, the statements on lines 2-3 are acted on, and then control passes to the next sentence (line 4). If BALANCE is either positive or zero, control jumps directly to the next sentence (line 4).

FLOW OF CONTROL (continued)

Flow of control through an IF sentence that contains ELSE or OTHERWISE.



#### Example.

1	IF RECOVERY IS NOT GREATER THAN
2	SCRAP-POINT,
3	MOVE ITEM-NUMBER TO
4	SCRAP-ITEM,
5	ADD RECOVERY TO SCRAP;
6	OTHERWISE,
7	WRITE CONSERVATION-RECORD.
8	ADD 1 TO TRANSACTION-COUNT.

RECOVERY is compared with SCRAP-POINT. If RECOVERY is equal to or less than SCRAP-POINT, the conditional description is true, so the statements on lines 3-5 are acted on, and then control jumps to the next sentence (line 8). If RECOVERY is greater than SCRAP-POINT, the conditional description is false, in which case control jumps to lines 6-7, and then passes to the next sentence (line 8).



Case Study



### CASE STUDY. Customer billing program.

### Input. Billing record.

ACCOUNT	IDENTIFICA	TION					CREDIT	STATUS
TYPE	ACCOUNT	NUMBER		CUSTOMER	STREET	CITY	DATING	DUDCHACE
OF ACCOUNT	STORE NUMBER	FILE NUMBER	CYCLE	NAME	ADDRESS	STATE	CODE	LIMIT

S	ACCOUNT	HISTORY		LAST YE	AR			Ω
$\left\{ \right\}$	YEAR OPENED	YEAR LAST ACTIVE	HIGHEST BALANCE	MONTHS ACTIVE	MONTHS OVER 90	TOTAL PURCHASES	TOTAL RETURNS	$\left\{ \right\}$

THIS YEA	R TO DATI	E		LAST MONTH	
MONTHS ACTIVE	MONTHS OVER 90	TOTAL PURCHASES	TOTAL RETURNS	NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS	BALANCE FORWARD

#### THIS MONTH PURCHASES CREDITS PAYMENTS NUMBER BILLING CURRENT OF NUMBER DATE BALANCE NUMBER AMOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT AMOUNT TRANSACTIONS

}		COLL	ECTIO	N HIS	TORY			
RET	JRNS	OVE	ERDUE	BALAN	CES	LAST	PAYMENT	DUNNING
	AMOUNT	30 DAY	60 Day	90 Day	120 Day	DATE	AMOUNT	CODE

#### Output. Monthly statement.

	0 1	2	3	4 5	6	7 8
1		8 9 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 3	4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	89012345678901	
3	GENERAL	STORES 7	200 webste	R AVENUE • EN	IDICOTT • NEW	YORK 13760
5						
7	BALANCE FROM	TRANSAC	TIONS MADE TH	IS MONTH	ACCOUNT	BILLING
8		PURCHASES	PAYMENTS	CREDITS	NUMBER	DATE
9						
10	\$56.17	\$126.03	\$56.17	\$49.22	365 8004	10 18 65
11						
12						
13						
14						
15	AMOUNT DUE	\$76.81	MRS	RALSTON WRAITH	JR	
16			3869	N RIVERSIDE D	R	
17			BING	HAMTON N Y 139	02	
18						
19						
20						
21						
1						

# Identification division.

IDENTIFICATION DIVIS	ION.							
PROGRAM-ID.								
¦'BILLING'.								
								÷
AUTHOR.								
PAUL MELICHAR.								
		series. And experience						
DATE-WRITTEN.								1
SEPTEMBER, 1965.								
REMARKS.								
STATEMENTS ARE N	OT SENT	TOI	NACT	IVE A	CCOUNTS	. ANO	THER PROGR	AM
HANDLES ACCOUNTS	WITH N	EGATI	VE (	CREDI	T) BALA	NCES.		
FOUR LINES ARE P	RINTED	ON EA	CH S	TATEM	ENT, UN	DERC	ARRIAGE TA	ΡE
CONTROL. LINE 1	ISPRIN	TEDA	FTER	ASK	IP TO C	HANNE	_ 1, LINE	2
AFTER A SKIP TO	CHANNEL	2. L	INES	3 ANI	D 4 ARE	SING	E-SPACED.	

(Continued on next page)

# Environment division.

ENV	IR	0	NN	E	N	Г	0		V	1	S	1	ON		Γ		Γ			Τ	-				-		ł				,	1	Γ			Γ			T	Î	1							
							Ι		- 10.000											Τ	Sec. 10					and the second second			1.0 0000		-				and the second second					-					-	ol an ann	1	
CON	F¦I	GI	JR	A	Т	I C	N	J	S	E	C	Т	10	N				der vers											1.00			a restance a								and the second	-					100 A 100		
					and the second second						- 211 -				-										-		a summary s		a mentan a s			-									-		-				11000	
sou	R¦C	ε	-0	0	MF	۶U	ıΠ	ГΕ	R			-		Γ	1		Τ			Τ	ALC: NO			-					- and and -													Π					1. N. 1. N.	
	1	B	4-	-3	6 (	0	6	35	0		1	1	ł	Γ			Τ		and the first	Τ											-					Г			Τ									
				Π		T	T					and the second		Т			Τ			T	-				1								Γ			Τ			Τ	1								
OBJ	E¦C	;T	-0	:0	M	PU	1	ГЕ	R				and and a second	T			Τ			T		-				-										Γ	-					Π						
-	-11	B	<b>v</b> i-	-3	60	D	F	- 3	0			Annual Annual	-	Т			Τ			Т									-				Γ								- North Color	and country -						
	1												-	Т	t.		Ţ			T					1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -				A second second				Γ								-	1.0000		a suma su	-			
INP	υ¦Τ		σι	ıΠ	PI	υT		S	E	С	Т	I	01	1.	ĺ		1			Τ	-	-											Γ			Τ												
	-						T	and the second				-		T			Τ	and the second se		1		1		-	1	ļ										Τ			Τ				-					
FIL	E-	- C (	лc	IП	R	OL	Ţ							T	1		Τ			T	-			Ì			1		1	1		-	Γ			T	1			1			a a restaura					
	's	E	E	c	Т	E	3	L	L	1	N	G	F	1	L	Ε.	,	Α	SS	5	10	ΞN		ТС	)	•	в	11	L	F	1	E	•		UΤ	1	L	1	τh	1.	,	and an and the second s						
	¦s	SE	E	c	т	C	北	JS	Т	0	M	E	R-	B	1	LL		F	11		E,		A	SS	51	G	N	1	го		' (	ว่ม	s	Т	BI	L	L	1									1	
	1		-	υ	N	11		- R	E	С	0	R	D	1	4	03	3	U	N	ŀ	T.								-						and the state of the							-		No. of Concession, Name	1		1	

# Data division.

D	λT	A	D	1	V	IS	1	0	N		Γ	Ι		T		Π			T	T	T	Т			Γ			Т			Τ			Т				Γ				i			T					1	1	Т	-		;	
Ť	Ť	!	Ħ	1	Ť	1	T	Ē	F	Ť	ŀ			T	T	Ħ		T	T	T	T	t	Τ	Τ	T		-	T			T			T	ļ	1			Γ			1	1		T	Ī				1		T			÷	,
F	1	FI	s	F	d	r ı	0	N		T	t	П	F	t	$\uparrow$	Ħ	F	T	T	T	t	T	$\dagger$	+	t	Π	Ì	T	Π	T	$\uparrow$			$^{+}$	1	T	T	F	Ī			1	T	T	T					ł		T		ł		
ľ+			ľ		Ť	Ť	Ť	T	ŀ	1	t	H	F	t	+	П	F	t	t	$\uparrow$	t	t	$\dagger$	+	t	$\dagger$	1	$\uparrow$		T	+		H	+	1	+	Ť	$\vdash$	t			1	1	1	┢	Ť			1	1		$\dagger$	1			
	+				$\mathbf{t}$			+	-	1.		F	┢	t	+	Н	┢	+	$\dagger$	+	t	╋	+	+	$\mathbf{T}$	Τİ	1	+	Ħ	1	+	1		+	$\dagger$	Ť	Ť	┢	T			1	1	Ť	+	1					-	$\dagger$		1		-
	1	<u>1</u> 5				1			F.			<b>E</b>	Ł		+		┢	5	t		t				+	+	+	╋	+	+	+	-	H	+	+	+	+	┢	+				Ť	+	+	1	Н		H	+	-	+		;		-
┝┼	+	1		0	믜	4	10		N		A	-				0		R		E	ť.	1		13	+		+	╋	+	+	┝	+	H	+	+	+	+	┢	-		Η	-	+	+	╉	+	+	Η		1		+	-	1		
$\vdash$	+		<b>A</b>	8	박	╡	H	E	C	0	R	U	5	+	A	K	E	+	5	1	P			12				┢		+	┝	+		+	+	+	+	┢	┝	$\vdash$		-	+		+	+	+	-		+		+	-			
$\vdash$	+	jL		T	4	#	4	C	0	R			μ	15	-	В	μ	L	. L	4	₽		<u>-</u>	1	1	. C		Ψ	•	+	╇	-		+	+	+	+	┢	-	-				_	╀	+			-	+	1	+				
$\left  \right $	+	i		_	+	+	-	╞	-	-	-	-			-	$\vdash$	┝	-	+	+	╞	+	+	+-	┞	+	-	+		+	╋	-	$\left  \right $	+	+	+	+	-	-		_	_	_	_	+	1	-			_	1	╉				-
0.	4	j jE	3	L	니	Ψ	IG	-	R	E	C	0	R		).	-	┞	-	+	+	+	1	+	+	L	+	+	+	-	+	+	-		+		-	+-	┢	-	-		_		1	+		1					+				-
	-	Lic I	)2		4	40	; C	0	μ	N	T	-	1		)E	N	T	11	F			; A	1		10	N	•	+		-	+	-		+	-	+	+	┢	-						+			-		-,		+		+		_
	-		$\square$		K	23	5		T	Y	P	E	-	C	) F	-	A		; C	20	业	IN	1		L	$\downarrow$		+			P	1	C	T	UI	RIE		X		-	_		j	-	+	_	1			_		4	2			
	$\downarrow$				K	2	5		A	C	C	0	U	IN	T	-	N	U	IN	<b>AB</b>	E	F	۲.	Ľ	L			1			1	-		$\downarrow$	-				-	 					$\perp$	i.	-			1						
		1				1	1		0	4			S			R	E	-	• 1	1U	IN	1 E	3 E	R			-	$\perp$			P	1	С	TI	U	RE		9	9	9	·				$\perp$	_	!					$\downarrow$				
									0	4			F		L	E	-	N	IL	JN	E	BE	F	2						1	P	1	C	τl	U	RE	EL	9	(	4	)			į				-		_			-			
Ì		1				2	5		B	1	L	L	1	IN	IG	-	c	; Y	C	; L	E										P	1	С	τļ	υI	RE	=	9	9				Ì										1	1		1
			Π			03	5	Τ	C	U	IS	T	0		AE	R	-	- N	1 4	١N	A E			T	Τ						Ρ	1	С	T	υ	RE	E	X	(	2	2	)														
Π	i	!	Π		k	23	3	Γ	s	Т	R	E	E	1	rl-	A	D	D			S	3 5	5	I				Τ			P	1	C	TI	υ	RE	E	x	(	2	2	)			T	1						T	1	1	1	
Ħ	$\uparrow$	!	Π			03	5	T	Īc	1	T	Y	-		s T	A	T	E			T	T	T		T	П		T			P	1	С	TI	UI	RE	Ξ	x	1	2	2	)			Τ		1		Ì			1		1		
	1	!0	)2			C F	2 F		Ī	T	·	S	T	-	T	·u	Is		T	T	t	T	T	T	T	Π		T			Ť	T		Ť	Ī	T		Г	T					T	T	Τ		Τ				1	ł,		i.	-
	1		T			23	5	T	R	À	T	1	N	İ	-	-C	c	חו	) F		t	T	1	T	t	T	T	T			P	1	С	T	υI	RE	-	x	t					1	$\uparrow$	1	T	T				1			1	
Ħ	+							t					t.			F		1					r	1	t	T		t	11		ĥ	i	C	Ť				1	1	4	1			.	$\dagger$	1	1	1				1				
	1	1	-		-			-	<u>IL</u>				1	1	13		+		-	IV	1		-		+	4	-	+			ιr.		-	4			-	13	1		4	•		+	+	+	+		H			+		-		
T T	7		2						1.	N	T		Ē	t	S	T	<b>t</b> o	R	, Ty	t.	t	1	1	1	t			1			1	1		+	-+-	-		1-	1	1				-+	+	-						+				
	1		2					0	UY	N	TA		H		S	TE		R	2 Y	1.	Ŧ				Ŧ				a manual and a manufacture		P	· I	С		UF	RE		9	9						1	-	-					+		and a statement of the second statement		
			2					0	U Y	N E	TAA	R	H		SP	TES		R													P P		C		Uf	<b>R</b> E		9	9	•					+						AMMANANA AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN			a constant of Annotation (1991) and a strategies of a strategiest of a		office of the state of the state
			2					:0		NEE	TAG				S P A	TES.								/E									C C C			26		9	99(	. 4	)		9	9												and the set of the set of the set of the
			2					:0 	UY YH		TAGF				S P A									/E									C C C			<b>२</b> ह <b>२</b> ह		999	99(	4	)	v	9	9												- control of the second s
			)2								TAAGEA													/E									C C C			<b>R</b> E		999	990	•	)	V	9	9												
			)2								TAAGEN																						C C C C C					999	99(	4	)	V	9	9												
			)2																														C C C C C C C C C C					999999	99( 99(	• • 4 • • • 5	)		9	9										- Contraction of Cont		
			)2																																					• • • • • 5 5			9	9												
			)2																														C C C C C C C C C C					999999		· · 4 · · 5 5	) ) ) )		9	9	•						a managerer a den an eine eine eine eine eine eine eine					
			)2																																					4 5 5	)))		9	9												
																																								• • 4 • • • 5 5 • •	)		999	9												
																																								4	) ))		9999	9												
																																								· · 4 · · 5 5 · · 5 5			9999	99999												
																																								· · 4 · · 5 5 · · 5 5			9999	999999												
																																								· · 4 · · 5 5 · · 5 5	)))		9999	9999												
																																								· · 4 · · · 5 5 · · · 5 5 · ·			9 9 9 9 9	9 9 9 9												
																													JS														9999	999999												
																													JS														9999999	999999												
																																											9999	99999												
																																								· · · 4 · · · 5 5 · · · 5 5			999999999999999999999999999999999999999	9999999												

# Data division (continued).

	HASES.	
04	NUMBER	PICTURE 99.
04	AMOUNT	
04		
04	NUMBER	
04	AMOUNT	PICTURE 9(4)V99.
	RNS.	
04	NUMBER	
04	AMOUNT	
02 COLLECTI	ON-HISTORY.	
	DUE-BALANCES	
! 04		
04	90-DAY	
04	120-DAY	PICTURE 9(4)V99.
LAST	-PAYMENT.	
04	DATE	
: 04	AMOUNT	
	ING-CODE	

# Data division (continued).

5.1					-			T		_	L	J		_	L	. 1			Т	7		Т	. I		١.	_			Г	Т	Т	1			Т	Т	Т	Т	1			Т	Т	Т			Т	Т			Г	Т	Т		Г		1	1	- 1		1	1												- 1			1	1
	Ц.	┝	ç	Ч	S	I	Ł	4	ų	5	ŀ	Ļ	-	Ľ	1	Ц	L	┡	4	_	ľ	4	Ц	L	4	4	-	_	┡	╇	+	4	-	_	╀	+	╇	+	+	-		╀	╀	+	-	┝	╀	+	-	_	┝	+	╉	-	-	+	+	╉	-		-	┝	┡	+	+	-	_	┡	+	-	-	╇	╉	+	_	-	-	$\vdash$
		L	ß	E	C	0	F		D	L	ľ	K	G		A	A	0	C	2	E	L	1	F		L	4			L	∔	4	1	_		Ļ	1	1	4	_	_		1	L	4		L	L	1	_	_	L	1	1	_		1	4	4	_		L	L	L	1	4	_		L	4		L	∔	1	4				μ
			Ł	A	B	Ε	L			R	E	ŀ	C	0	<b>F</b>	R	D	s	5		A	۱	R	E			o	M	h	-	rt	T	E	D																	Ĺ																											
Π	1	Γ	h	Δ	Т	Δ	Γ	T	R	F	C	I	n	R	Ī	5	S	Г	T	Δ	F	2	-		F	2	1	1	L	T.		Π	1	N	F		4	ī			R	1	h			_		T	1	N	F		ļ	2		Τ	F	1	1	1	6	-	1	Τ	1	N	F	-	-	3		Τ	Τ	Τ			Γ	Π
H	+	$\mathbf{T}$	1	٦	÷	Ē	t	Ţ			,	Ť	-		T		Ň	L	ľ		L	Ť	1		ľ	1	Ċ		Г	t	ť	٦	•		T	T	Ť	Ħ	Ì			Ť	T	T	-	F	f	t	1		T	T	Ť		ľ	Ť	Ť	1	İ	-	Г	T	f	t	1	-		t	Ť		Ť	T	t	1	-	F	T	Π
H	┿	┝	Н			┝	F	4		L_	┞	Ŧ	-	L	ť	4		f	+	_	F	+	۰	-	+	+	-	-	╀	+	t	-	-	-	t	+	t	+	+	-	-	+	t	t	-	-	+	$^{+}$	-	-	┢	+	╉		t	+	+	╉	-		┝	┢	┢	+	+	-	-	t	+	-	┢	t	+	+	-	-	┢	╈
$\square$	-	1	Ļ			L	L	+	_	_	Ļ	ļ	_	L	+	_		L	4		╞	4	4		+	4	_	_	Ļ	+	+	-	-	-	ł	+	+	4	$\downarrow$	_	_	Ļ	Ŧ	+		-	Ļ	+	_	_	+	+	+		Ļ	+	+	4	_	_	ŀ	╞	┡	+	-		-	Ļ	+	_	╞	+	+	-	_	Ļ	_	+
Ø	1		В	1	L	L	Ŀ	·		1	ľ	t	E	-	ŀ	Ľ		L											L														L					1	_	_	L		1				$\downarrow$	1			L	L	L	$\downarrow$			_	L	4				1			L	L	L
			0	2		<i></i>	ł		I	L	L	l	E	R										ľ																			1	P	I	C	h	dı	υ	R	E		ŀ	X	1		ŧ))	Ì										L										
П	Т	T	'n	2			P	1		n	Ι.	Ţ	R	Δ	1		Δ	h	1	c	F	-	٦		Т	T			T	T	T				T	T	Ţ	T				T	Ī	5	1	C	h			R	F	T	Ţ	\$	4			2	\$	ŝ	Γ	q	c	5				Г	Τ		Г	T	T	٦	·	Γ	Γ	Γ
H	+	1	2	0			Ê	T	-	ī		ť	-		Ť	-	-	ľ	1	~		+	1	F	t	+	-	-	t	$^{+}$	1		-		t	Ť	t	1	+	-		t	ť	1	ì	L	Ť	T,				1	Ť	v	ť,	Ť,	;	1	-	*	ť	f	f	1	•	-	F	t	1	-	t	t	t	1		F	t	┢
Η	+	┝	5	4	-	┝	f	+	-	L	ł	₽	<u> </u>	F	1	-	_	ł	+	_	+	+	-	-	+	+	-	-	╀	+	+	-	-	-	+	+	+	╉	+		-	┽	ť	+	-	P	#	Ŧ	U			+	╉	<u>^</u>	Ц	+	4	4	•		╀	$\frac{1}{1}$	Ł	+	-		-	╉	+	-	╋	+	╉	-		┝	+	┿
H	4	1	Ø	2	-	L	F	겎	Ų	R	K	4	H	A	4	5	E	ß	2		+	4	_	_	+	+	-		Ł	+	$\downarrow$	_		_	+	+	+	4	4		-	+	₽	2		C	Π		U	R	<u>I</u> E	4	-	5	ß	4	4	Ę	<u>\$</u>	5	-	5	13	4	•		_	┞	-	_	+	+	+	_		-	╞	╞
			0	2			F		L	Ŀ	I.		E	R	2							j																					1	P	1	C	汀	r	U	R	E			<u>X</u>	1	Ł	ł	Л										L										
		Г	6	2				>	A	Y	h		E	N	1-	r	S								I							•											1	Þ	ī	C	h	Fli	U	R	E			\$		5		ŧ	\$	Ŝ		1		B				L										
П	T	T	2	2		Γ	Ē	Ī	1		T,	T	-	C				T	1		T	1		Г	t	1			t	T	T			Γ	T	T	T	T			Γ	T	T,		1	6	Ţ	T					1	v	1			1			T	T	Г	1			Γ	T	1		T	T	T			Γ	Γ	Г
H	+	┿	ž	E	-	┝	ť	+	1		ť	1	5	E	4		-	t	┥		╈	+	-	┝	+	+		┝	t	+	+	-		┝	$^{+}$	$^+$	+	╡			-	+	ť		+	Ľ	4	Ŧ	<u> </u>		1	+	+	<u>^</u>	ť	Ŧ		4	•		+	t	t	+	-		┢	t	+	-	+	t	╉	-		┢	+	+
H	+	╇	μ	Z	-	╞	Ł	4	ĸ	5	ł	4	1	1	ł	5	-	╀	+		+	+		┝	+	+	-	┝	╀	+	+	-		┝	+	+	+	+	-		-	+	4	4	1	P		4	V	h	91	+	+	5	ŀ	4	÷	4	2	Þ	+	-	ŀ	4	•		$\vdash$	╉	$\neg$	-	+	+	╉		-	-	-	┝
	÷.	1.	0	2		L	μ		1	L	1	4	E	F	5		_	Ļ	4		1	4		L	1	4		L	1	4				L	1		1	4		_	-		μ	P	1		1	П	U	R	2  E	4	4	X	4	47	74	Ц	•	_	4	Ļ	Ļ	4	_		L	1	4		1	4	4	_			Ļ	$\downarrow$
			6	2			1		С	C	k	k	υ	N	1	Т	-	h	J	U			B	E		R	-																1	P	۱	C	2	rļ	U	F	E			9	Ş		Ð	Э	9	9	g	b																
Π	Τ	Ĩ	6	2			1	-	1	I	h		E	F	2		ľ	Τ			Τ	Τ		Γ	T				Τ	T	Τ			ł.	Τ	Τ		Τ				T	1	P	1	C	h	d	Ú	F		Ξ	Ι	X	1		5	Ŋ			Γ		Ι	T				Ι			I	T	Τ					T
П	1	T	5	2			Ť,	Ĵ	ï	Ī.	Ī,	-	-			~	F	t,	1		T,		-	t	1	1		F	t	1	1			F	t	T	1				T	T	T,			L	Ţ	Ì	<u> </u>	Ĺ			1	~	T	Ţ		J	à	0	t	L	t	T			Г	T	٦		T	T	1			T	T	Т
H	+	+	N	2	┝	┝	ť	2	+	ŀ		4	-	Ē	+	9	F	₽	4	4	Ŧ	4	5	┝	+	+		┝	t	+	╅	-		┢	$^{+}$	+	+	+	-		╞	+	ť		÷	Ľ	4	4	<u>.</u>			+	┥	3	f	7		Z	3		Ŧ	Ŧ	+	┥	-	-	$\left  \right $	t	-		+	+	+	-	-	┢	t	┿
L	4	+	Ŋ	Z	L	L	l	-	ļ	L	ł	-	Ľ	ŀ	Ľ			Ļ				4	_	L					Ļ	1		_	_	L	1	-	+	4		_	Ļ	-	μ	Ρ,	1	ļ	4	Ц	Ų	ľ	ų,	4	4	X	μ	4	D!	2	1	ŀ	+	+	t	-	-	_	ļ.,	ļ	_	ļ	+	+	-	-	L	L	+	+
	1	ľ	6	ī	L	E	ŀ	-	L	1		į	E	-	-	2		t	1		t	1	1	r	t	1		-	t	t	1	-		F	t	t	t	1			-	T	t	1			1	t			t	t	1		t	t	1	t			t	t	t					t	1		t	1	1				1	T
2	1	ľ	<b></b>	1	L	L					1	1	E	- R	- 2	2	•	ţ	1	_	t		-		t	+		-	t	†	1		_		t	Ŧ	1	1				1	ļ	5	-	C			U	R	E		ļ	x		2	20		)			+	ļ			_		t				+	†					
	1		5 0 0-1	122	L								E	- R		2				F					+				t														F		1	C			U	R	E			X			20		)									ļ						-				
	1		0 0 0 0	122	L								EEN	- R T		2			J	E									ļ														5						UU	RR	E			x \$					> \$	\$		9		•	•													
	1		10 0 0 0 0	122									EENE	- R T R		2	· ·		J	E								-																	     				UUUU	RR	E			x \$ x					< < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < <	\$				•	•													
	1		0 0 0 0 0 0	12222									EENE	R		2	· · ·			Ε																														RRR				x \$ x x			20 2 2		<b>)</b> () () ) )	\$		g		•	•													
	1		0 0 0 0 0 0 0	122222													· 0			E																																							<b>)\$</b> ))))	\$				•	•													
	1		<u>- 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6</u>	122222										- R F			· •			Ε																														RRRR				x \$ x x x x x				2 1	<b>)\$)))</b>	\$		9		•	•													
	1			12222													· · ·		J	E																														RRRR				x \$ x x x x x				21	) <b>\$</b> )))	\$					•													
			5 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2														· 0			E																														RRRR										•					•													
			5 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15																	E																																							<b>)\$</b> ))) ・ ・	· • • • • • • • • •					•													
			5 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15														· 0			E																																							<b>)\$</b> )))   )))	•																		
																				E																																							<b>)\$</b> ))) ・ ・ ・ ・ ・ ・						•													
																	· 0			E																																							) <b>\$</b> )))))	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••																		
																	· 0			E																																							<b>)</b> () () () () () () () () () ()	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••																		
																				E																																							) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )	•																		
			<u> </u>				والملكا والملية الملية المرام المرابعا المرابيا													E																																							<u>) \$ ) ) () ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )</u>						•													
			5 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15																	E																																							<u>) \$ ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )</u>																			
			- 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16																																																								) () () ) ) ) ) ) )																			
																																																									22( 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2) 2)		) <b>\$</b> ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )					•														
																				E																																							) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )						•													
																				E																								P P P P															<b>)</b> <b>\$</b> <b>)</b> <b>)</b> <b>)</b> <b>)</b> <b>)</b> <b>)</b> <b>)</b>			9			•													
																																																									40		>\$))))						•													
			<u>a batenting a setter a setter a batenting a setter</u>																																																						4		) <b>\$</b> ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )						•													

# Procedure division.

	d		1.1	ate	t			V	1	c	H	5		1	П	H	1		Н	1	1	H	-1		11	+	+	+	1	T	t	T	+	+	t	t	T	1	t	T	1	Т	1	-					Г			t	Т	t	T	t	Ŀ	1	+	T
ff	H		Ĥ	Ŧ	+	ľ	-	-	-	3	H	Ÿ		•	Η	Η			Η		-	Η	+		Η	1	╉	+	+	+	$^{+}$	+	+	+	t	+	╀	+	╉	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	Η	-	-	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	┢	+	+	+	╉	+	+	+	+
		+		t		te	-			N			┝	$\vdash$	Η	+		-	Η	-	-	Η	+	-	Η	+	+	+	+	+	╉	+	+	+	+	+	╉	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	Η		┝	$\vdash$	┝	┢	+	+	+	╋	+	+	+	÷
	A			1	1.	E	2	<b>n</b> :	-		9	•	-		-			Η					-	-			_		-	╉	ł	+	+	+		ł	$\pm$		╀	+	_	-	-	-	_		$\mathbf{H}$	-	L	+	┝	┞	+	╀	+	╀	+	+	+	┝
+	++	101	"티	N	+	N	P	U	1		В	1	Ľ	Ľ	Ц	N	G		F	4	Ц	E	4		0	U	4	<b>P</b> [	4	4	4			51	TC TC	4	Ŧ	F	4	4	B	4	Ц	니	_	F	Щ	L	E	•	┝	┡	╀	+	+	╀	+	+	+	╄
H	++	<u>i</u> +		+	+-	+-	Ц	_	_	μ	$\square$	_	-	-	Н		-	Ц		_		μ	-		H		+	4	4	+	Ŧ	+	+	÷	╇	+	ŀ	+	╇	4	4	_	-				Ц		-	┞	-	┡	╇	+	+	∔	+	4	+	+-
RE	<b>A</b>	<u>-//</u>	N	막	-10	H	E	С	K	-	R	E	С	0	R	D	•						_	•	Ц		4	_	+	$\downarrow$	4	_	-	+	╀	_	+	+	∔	4	$\neg$	_		_		L		_	L	L	-	Ļ	$\downarrow$	+	_	╀	+	$\downarrow$	+	1
+	$\downarrow\downarrow$	R	A	D	E	<u>  </u>	L	L	1	N	G	-	F	1	L	Ε	3		A	T		Ε	N	Ø			G	0	4	T	4	1	EI	ML M	¥-	-	) F	1	ľ	R	U	N	·					_				L	$\downarrow$	1		1	$\downarrow$	$\downarrow$	$\downarrow$	
4	1	11		NL	١N	B	E	R	-	0	F	F	T	R	A	N	S	A	C	T	1	0	N	S		1	N	4	T	H	<u>I</u> E	B	1	4	쏻	1	rµ	1	4	L	S		E	Q	U	A	L	L	T	0		ĮZ	<u> </u> E	ľ	20	¥.	4	1	_	$\downarrow$
H		0	2	cι	小 F	R	E	N	T	_	B	A	L	<b>A</b>	N	С	Ε		1	S		N	Ε	G	A	T	1	VI	E	•	1	6	0	1	¢		F	<b>₹</b>  E	4	N	D	-	A	N	D	-	C	Η	E	C	K	Ŀ	- F	2	E	×	) F	2 0	).	
		1										ľ																			·			ŀ		1																L								
L	N	E¦'	-	PF		)C	E	D	U	R	E																				1							ľ									·													
		M	v	E	S	P	A	С	E	S		Т	0		B	1	L	L	-	L	1	N	E	-	1				ł	I		ł						Τ											1		Ι					ľ				ŀ
- 00, 007 at 1		M	٧C	Ε	E	3 A	L	A	N	С	E	-	F	0	R	w	A	R	D		T	0		0	L	D	_		A	Ľ			CI	E	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ									Ī	1	Γ		Τ	T		T		1	-	
1.	Π	M	٧	E	A	M	0	υ	N	Т		Ō	F		P	U	R	C	H	A	9	E	S		1	N	Ŧ	T	H	1	Ţ	-	M	0	T	T	1	T	T	T	·					Γ			Γ		ŀ	Т	T	T	T	T	T	1	1	
		1	Π	1	ric		Ρ	υ	R	С	Н	A	S	E	s	Π	1	N		B	1	L	Ĺ		L	1	N	E	1	1	T	T	Τ	T	T	Т	T	T	T	1						Γ			Γ	T	ŀ	Т	T	T	Τ	Т	Τ	T	Τ	Τ
1	$\mathbf{T}$	34		F	4	M	0	1	N	T	1	0	F	T	P		Ý		F	N	Ť	S		ŕ	Z		T	н	ī	s.	1	M		N	đ.	đ	T	t	t	1						ŀ	Γ		t	t	T	t	t	t	Ť.	T	T	1	T	T
	$\mathbf{H}$	1			ric		D	Ā	Y	M	F	Ň	T	-	1	F	N		9	1	Ċ	ĭ		i	1	N	F		1	4	ť	1	Ť		ť	+	$^{+}$	$\dagger$	t	+		$\neg$			-	1	Н	┢	┝	+	+	t	$\dagger$	$\dagger$	$^{+}$	t	t	$\dagger$	+	+
Ħ	$\ddagger$	5.	1.	╞	+		1	F		T	-	F	te	ľ	5	Ľ,	-	F		Ë	-	F		-	ľ	H		1	ċ	_	1		N.	┯	╈	+	+	+	$^{+}$	+			H		-	t	Η	┢	t	┢	t	t	+	+	$^{+}$	t		$\dagger$	+	+
╂┼	++		1	뚞			0	F	F		1	Ę	le	+	h		F	F		H	3	H	H	1			4	╬	4	-	Ŧ	4		4	╇	+	+	+	+	+		-	H			$\vdash$	Η	-	┢	+	+	ł	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
┢┼	++			╞	+	1	5	E	<b>E</b>		Ľ	۴	3					D	Η	Ľ	I L	H	-	-		E	-		:	-			$\pm$	+	╁	+	+	+	╀	┥	-	-	-	-	-	┝	Η	-	+	+	+	╀	+	+	+	╉	+	+	+	+
┢┼	++	M	1	5				2	U	N	-	E			M	В	E	R		2	۲	H	B	4	L	-	4		9	-	+			JI	Ŧ	4	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	-	┝	Η	-	┝	+-	╀	╀	+	╉	÷	╋	+	+	+	+
+	++	i	+	_			A	<u>C</u>	<u>c</u>	0	U	N		F	N		M	B		ĸ	_		N	-	В		Ч				#	NI		4	Ψ·	4	+	+	+	+	-	-	_	_	-	┝	Н	-	╀	+	+	╀	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	╋
+	+	M	)V	타	H	<u>s I</u>	L	F	1	N	G	F	D		Τ	E		0	F		T	H	1	S	F	M	9	N	Ţ	H	+	+	+	+	╇	+	-	+	+	+	-	_				-	Н	_	+	╞	╞	╀	+	+	+	╇	+	+	+	+
H	$\downarrow \downarrow$			1	ΓļC	)	B	μ	L	L	1	N	G	)-	D	A	Τ	E			N		B	1	L	L	-	L	1	NĮ	ŀ	-	1	•	+	+	-	1	1			_		_		-		L	Ļ		L	Ļ	+	1	1	1	-	+	-	
Ħ		W	२।	TE		В	1	L	L	-	L	Ī	N	ΙE	-	1		A	F	Т	E	R		S	K	ī	Р	-	Т	0	-10	c	AI	RI	*		10	3 E	<u></u>	_1	С	Н	A	N	N	E	L	E	1		T	t	t	1	1	t		1	t	
Ħ		<u>}</u>	२।	TE		B	1	L	L	-	L	Ī	N	E	ļ	1		A	F	Т	E	R		S	ĸ	-	Р	-	т	0	Ŧ	c	AI	RI	*		20	3 E	1		С	н	4	N	N	E	L	=	1	•	Ŧ	Ŧ				Ŧ			1	
	IN	<b>W</b> I	<b>२  </b> 2	TE	20	В	I E	L	L	R	E		N	E		1		Α	F	T	E	R		S	ĸ		Р	-	T	0-		c	AI	RI	2		10	3 E		-	C	Н	4	N	N	E	L		1	•						Ţ				
	IN	WI 	₹   2 2 V	T E	20	B	I E	L D C	LUE	- R S	E	1 • T	N		-	1		A	F	T	E	R	E	s I	K		Ρ	-	T	0-		C		RI	*		40	36		-	C	H	Α	N	N	E			1	•										
	IN		2 - 2 - 2 V	TE PF E		B	I E A R	LDCR		RSN	E	1 • T			B	1	L	A	F	T	E	RNO		S	K 2 M		P	-	T	0-			AI	RI	*		40	SE		-	C	H	4	N	N	E		-	1	•										
┲ ┲ ┲ ┲ ┲ ╃	IN			T E E E		BCP	I E A R S	L D C R T		RSNE					BLA		L	A	F	T	E I T	RNOR	E	SIA			P	- N	T	0-		C	A I	R I				3 E			C	H		N	N	E			1	•										
╊╌┿ ┣╌┥ ┣╌┥			2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 -	TE E E		B C P U U B	IEARSI			RSNA					BLA		L		FETF	T L O T	E	RNONR	E	S I A M S	K N N N N		P	- N	T	0		C U	A I	RI				G			C			N	N	E														
			2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 -	PFEET		B C P U U B	I E A R S I	LDCRTL		RSZ					BLA	1             	L		FETF	T L O T	E T E	RNONR	EA	SIIAN		   	P	- N	T	0		C U C	E	R				SE			C	H		N	N	E			-1	•										
			2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 -	PFEET			I EARSI E			RSNE					BLA	1             	L		F	T L O T	E	RNONR	EA		K 2 M K	 • •	P	- N	T	0		C U C	E	R R				3			C	H		N	N	E														
			2 - V 2 - V 2 - V 2 - V 2 - V 2 - V 2 - V 3 - V 3 - V 3 - V 3 - V 3 - V 3 - V 4				I EARSI EA			I R S N M I R S					BLA		L		F		E	RNONR	EA		K 2 M K B	     	P	- N -	T	0				R				GE			C	H		N	N															
										I R S Z M I R S T									FETF		E I T E	RZOZRZ	EA		X N X W X N X	         			T	0				R				GE				H		Z	N															
										I RSZZI RST							LNE		FETF		E I T E	R ZOZR Z D	EA		K 2 M K 3 D -													3 E			C	I																		
										R S Z Z I R S T I						1   A M 2   E 3	LNE		F		E	R NONR NR	EA				PUPGG		T	0																														
							IEARSIEARI			R S N M I R S T I P							LS		F		E	R NONR NR	EA						TTSE	0								GE																						
																			F ETF		E I T E T	R ZOZR Z R	EA						T	0								3			C																			
																			F E T F		E I T E I O E T I	R NORR NR Y	EA						TTSE	0								3																						
						B C P U U B C P T B C I B													F E F C F		E I T E I O E T E	R NONR N R YR	EA				P U P E G G		TTTSE																															
						B C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C															E I T E I O E T E	R NOZR N R YR	EA																																					
																						R NONR N R YR	EA																													<del>╏╻╻╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹</del>								
				T PEEET PEET TT																	E IT E IOE TE R	R NONR NR YR	EA						T																							╋┯┽╸╇╺╋╸╋╺╋╸╋								
				T PEET PEET PET T																		R NORR R YR	EA																													╋┯┿╼╇╌╇╶╋╶╋╴╋╴╋								
				T PEEET PEET PET T R											BLA				F E T F C F				EA																							E						╊╾╋╺╋╺╋╺╋╺╋								
				T PEEET PEET T R S															F F F F																																	<del>╏╻╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹</del>								



### STUDENT'S COMMENT FORM

SYSTEM/360 COBOL - COBOL Program Fundamentals Reference Handbook R29-0206-1

Your comments, as well as answers to the following questions, will help us design and administer programmed or self-study courses in a way that better suits your needs. If your answer to a question is "No", or needs further explanation, please use the space provided below. Comments and suggestions become the property of IBM.

•	What is your occupation?		
•	Why did you take this course?		
		Yes	No
•	Did this course, in general, meet your needs?		
•	Did an IBM employee serve as your advisor?		
•	Did you receive a completion certificate?		
•	Did you find the material: Easy to read and understand?		
	Organized for convenient use?		
	Well illustrated?		
•	Did you feel that any particular topics should be added or emphasized?		
•	Did you feel that any particular topics should not have been included?		

• If you found any technical errors, please list them below, giving form number, page, and frame number.



Aditional Comments:

#### STUDENT'S COMMENT FORM

SYSTEM/360 COBOL - COBOL Program Fundamentals Reference Handbook R29-0206-1

Your comments, as well as answers to the following questions, will help us design and administer programmed or self-study courses in a way that better suits your needs. If your answer to a question is "No", or needs further explanation, please use the space provided below. Comments and suggestions become the property of IBM.

•	What is your occupation?		
•	Why did you take this course?		
		Yes	No
•	Did this course, in general, meet your needs?		
•	Did an IBM employee serve as your advisor?		
•	Did you receive a completion certificate?		
•	Did you find the material: Easy to read and understand?		
	Organized for convenient use?		

Well illustrated?

- Did you feel that any particular topics should be added or emphasized?
- Did you feel that any particular topics should not \_\_\_\_\_\_ have been included?
- If you found any technical errors, please list them below, giving form number, page, and frame number.




International Business Machines Corporation Data Processing Division 112 East Post Road, White Plains, N.Y. 10601 [USA Only]

IBM World Trade Corporation 821 United Nations Plaza, New York, New York 10017 [International]